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INTRODUCTION
1. Honest isn’t. From at least September 20, 2012 through the present

(the “Class Period”), The Honest Company, Inc. (“Defendant” or “Honest”)
deceptively and misleadingly labeled, advertised and marketed its products,
including the following five Honest products: Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish
Soap, Honest Diapers, and Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner (collectively the
“Natural Products™) and Honest Sunscreen (together with the Natural Products, the
“Honest Products™) as both natural and effective, when in fact, the Natural
Products contain non-natural ingredients, and Honest Sunscreen is ineffective.

2. Plaintiffs Jonathan D. Rubin, Shane Michael, Stavroula Da Silva,
Dreama Hembree, and Ethel Lung bring this class action lawsuit against
Defendant, each individually and on behalf of two nationwide classes (the “Honest
Natural Products Class” and the “Honest Sunscreen Class”) that include other
similarly situated purchasers of the Honest Products who experienced the same or
substantially similar harm as a result of Defendant’s false advertising.

3. Defendant’s conduct harms consumers by inducing them to purchase
and consume the Honest Products on the false premise that the products are
natural and effective and by implicitly promising that the products are
manufactured, marketed and sold “honestly.”

4, Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the Honest Natural Products Class
paid a premium for certain Natural Products over comparable products, based on
Defendant’s representations that the Natural Products were natural. Instead of
receiving products that were natural, Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the Honest
Natural Products Class received products that, contrary to Defendant’s
representations, contained synthetic, non-natural ingredients.

5. Plaintiffs Michael, Hembree, and Lung, and the Honest Sunscreen

Class paid for Honest Sunscreen based in part on Defendant’s representations that
2
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it was effective. Plaintiffs Michael and Hembree used the product as directed and
suffered severe sunburns. Plaintiff Lung used the product as directed on her
children, who experienced severe sunburns. Numerous customer complaints and
negative product reviews indicate Plaintiffs’ experiences with Honest Sunscreen
were not unique.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the individual and class

claims asserted herein pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332, as amended in 2005 by the
Class Action Fairness Act, because: (A) the amount in controversy in this class
action exceeds $5,000,000, exclusive of interests, costs, and attorneys’ fees; and
(B) a substantial number of the members of the proposed class are citizens of a
state different from that of Defendant. In addition, Plaintiffs Rubin, Michael, Da
Silva, Hembree, and Lung are citizens of states different from that of Defendant, a
Delaware Corporation.

7. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant. Honest
maintains headquarters in Santa Monica, California and conducts substantial and
continuous business throughout the State of California.

8. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1391(a) & (b)(2) because a
substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claim occurred in this
District, and because Defendant conducts a substantial part of its business in this
District.

PARTIES

9. Plaintiff Jonathan D. Rubin is a resident of Los Angeles, California
and an individual consumer. During the Natural Products Class Period, Mr. Rubin
purchased Honest brand hand soap (“Honest Hand Soap”) and Honest brand dish
soap (“Honest Dish Soap”) from the supermarket chain Gelson’s Markets in Los

Angeles, California. As with all members of the Honest Natural Products Class,
3
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Mr. Rubin paid a premium for these Natural Products based upon the
representation that the Natural Products are natural, in excess of the price for
comparable products not purporting to be natural.

10.  Plaintiff Shane Michael is a resident of West Des Moines, lowa and
an individual consumer. During the Sunscreen Class Period, Plaintiff Michael
purchased Honest Sunscreen from the supermarket chain Costco Wholesale in
West Des Moines, lowa. Plaintiff Michael paid a premium for Honest Sunscreen
because Defendant promised natural, chemical-free SPF 30 sun protection and he
believed, based on these representations, that it would be safer for his family than
chemical-based sunscreens.

11.  Plaintiff Stavroula Da Silva is a resident of Miramar, Florida, and an
individual consumer. During the Natural Products Class Period, Plaintiff Da Silva
purchased Honest Hand Soap and Honest Dish Soap from Target in Florida. As
with all members of the Honest Natural Products Class, Ms. Da Silva paid a
premium for these Natural Products based upon the representation that the Natural
Products are natural, in excess of the price for comparable products not purporting
to be natural.

12.  Plaintiff Dreama Hembree is a resident of Burlington, Kansas and an
individual consumer. During the Sunscreen Class Period, Ms. Hembree purchased
Honest Sunscreen from the supermarket chain Costco Wholesale in Burlington,
Kansas. Ms. Hembree paid for the Honest Sunscreen because she believed the
sunscreen would effectively protect her family from exposure to UV rays, and
because Defendant promised natural, chemical-free SPF 30 sun protection.

13.  Plaintiff Ethel Lung is a resident of Burbank, California and an
individual consumer. During the Sunscreen Class Period, Ms. Lung purchased

Honest Sunscreen from the supermarket chain Costco Wholesale in Burbank,
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California. Ms. Lung paid for the Honest Sunscreen because she believed the
sunscreen would effectively protect her family from exposure to UV rays.

14.  Defendant The Honest Company, Inc. is a Delaware corporation
headquartered in Santa Monica, California. The company markets its products
online through the website <https://www.honest.com> (“Honest.com”) and
operates an active storefront on Amazon.com selling the Honest Products.
Defendant maintains supply chain control over the manufacture of the Honest
Products, operates as an online retailer, and distributes the Honest Products,
business-to-business, to major retail outlets throughout the U.S. and Canada.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Defendant’s Nationwide Distribution

15.  California has significant contacts to the class claims asserted in the
Complaint.

16.  Oninformation and belief, Defendant has designed, controlled, and
overseen a national production and distribution network from the company’s
headquarters in California.

17.  According to the company’s public statements, Defendant contracts
with third-party manufacturing and supplier facilities to produce and distribute the
Honest Products. On information and belief, Defendant controls its entire supply
chain from its company headquarters in California.

18. Defendant sells the Honest Products online via Honest.com, a direct-
to-consumer e-commerce website. On information and belief, Defendant controls
Its entire e-commerce operation from its company headquarters in California.

19. Defendant actively generates traffic to its website through promotions
on Facebook.com and Twitter.com, on information and belief, operated from the

company’s headquarters in California.

5
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20. Defendant uploads Honest Product videos on its YouTube account,
on information and belief, operated from the company’s headquarters in
California.

21. Defendant also sells the Honest Products through a popular online
storefront in the Amazon.com marketplace. On information and belief, Honest
controls its Amazon storefront from its company headquarters in California.

22. Defendant distributes the Honest Products, business-to-business, for
purchase in big box chain retail locations nationwide, including Target, Costco
Wholesale Corporation, Whole Foods Market, Inc., Gelson’s Markets, and Buy
Buy Baby, Inc., across the United States. On information and belief, Defendant
controls national distribution of the Honest Products from its company
headquarters in California.

Defendant’s Long-Term Advertising Campaign

23. Defendant created, designed, and since at least 2012, carried out a
long-term, national advertising campaign from the company’s California
headquarters.

24. Defendant’s advertising campaign has been sufficiently lengthy in
duration, and widespread in dissemination, such that it would be unrealistic to
require the plaintiff to plead relying upon each advertised misrepresentation.

25. Defendant’s advertising campaign has been widespread, continuous,
and contained in various media, labels, and point-of-sale displays.

26. Defendant’s advertising campaign has included and includes
traditional media and new media, such as print circulars, television
advertisements, television appearances, social media promotions, sales copy on its
own website, and sales copy on third party marketplace websites.

27. Defendant has engaged in this long-term advertising campaign to

convince potential customers, first, that the company’s advertising representations
6
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should be taken literally, because those claims are “honest,” and second, that the
company’s products are literally “natural’”” and “effective.”
28. Representative samples of the campaign are contained herein.

Defendant’s Overarching Brand Advertising

29.  As part of the long term advertising campaign, Defendant at all times
has advertised, and continues to advertise, itself as a consumer products company
that is centrally defined by selling natural, effective products and publishing
honest advertising claims.

30. As a representative example, Defendant advertises its company as “Natural, Safe,
Beautiful, Effective,” on its own website, including in the following screenshot from Honest.com

captured on August 14, 2015:

Join the Honest Company

Matural « Safe « Beautiful « Effective
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31.  Asanother representative example, on August 18, 2015, Defendant’s
celebrity co-founder Jessica Alba and CEO Brian Lee appeared jointly, in their
capacities as executive officers for Defendant, for a company feature on CNN

Money that broadcast the same advertising representations, as follows:

(=] Money  sunees v ]

Jessica Alba cashing in on Honest
Company

==
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32. Defendant advertises the company’s product lines, in general, as
“effective” and “safe” in offline point-of-sale locations as well, including airport
kiosks, as demonstrated by the following picture from July 2015:
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32.  As part of the long term advertising campaign, Defendant includes its

company’s name, in lower case, on its product labels, specifically as part of each

honest dish soap,

“honest multi-surface cleaner,” and “honest sunscreen.”
33.  As part of its advertising campaign, Defendant further amplifies its
representations with the “honestly FREE guarantee,” which is displayed on
product labels and displayed at Honest.com, Defendant’s Amazon storefront, and

partner websites including Target.com.

34.  The “honestly FREE guarantee” states: “Providing clear, credible,

transparent information. No smoke and mirrors. No confusion.”
35. Defendant further describes itself, its advertising, and its numerous
product lines as follows on Honest.com:

“Free from fraud or deception, truthful — We believe in transparency and

that applies to everything — from what we put into our products and how
they are made to our internal operations and how we do things.
“Genuine, real — The Honest Company was started by parents for
parents. We are real tangible people, parents that understand what
families need and we want to deliver on that — not some big corporation
with no social consciousness that only cares about making a profit.
“Respectable, praiseworthy — We are people with integrity and we
intend on not only doing things right, but also going above and beyond
to earn your respect and loyalty — making you so delighted you want
to shout it from a rooftop (or tweet it from your iPhone).

“Humble — We know no one can be absolutely perfect and a part of our
commitment to honesty means we'll admit our flaws. It's pretty scary,
but we think it's a good way to keep us focused on constant

improvement.”
9
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36. Defendant’s Chief Creative Officer and celebrity co-founder Jessica
Alba serves as the public face of the company.

37.  To further advertise the company image as selling natural products,
Ms. Alba has crafted public statements about Defendant to convince the public
that the Defendant is leading a movement to protect consumers from products that
contain chemicals.

38. Ms. Alba’s celebrity status ensures the company’s claims are reported
by numerous media outlets.

39. Inthis way, Ms. Alba has coordinated her media appearances with
Defendant’s long-term advertising campaign.

40. OnJune 18, 2015, Ms. Alba and The Honest Company, Inc.’s COO
Christopher Gavigan appeared jointly in their capacities as Defendant’s co-
founders to petition federal officials to strengthen regulations against consumer
products containing toxic chemicals, and Ms. Alba and Mr. Gavigan coordinated
this appearance with Defendant’s extensive marketing campaign, including as
follows:

a. Ms. Alba appeared in the hallway of a Congressional office
building, before a professional media crew, and stated: “[A]s a
business owner, I’m proof of concept that you can do business
right—right by humans, right by the planet —and you can be very
successful and grow very quickly.”

b. Mr. Gavigan tweeted the following statement with a picture of the
Washington Monument: “Here in D.C. to convince lawmakers to
join @honest to protect citizens. #chemical #reform.”

41. Defendant’s representations that advertise the company as “honest,”
“natural,” and “effective,” extending to all of its product lines, are available to

consumers via numerous online, offline, and point-of-sale platforms, extending to
10
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all or substantially all potential and actual customers that fall within the class

definitions set forth in this Complaint.

42. By advertising the company as “honest” and as “natural” and

“effective,” Defendant has extended its overarching advertising claims to each
individual product line, such that Defendant has cultivated an image in the minds
of consumers that would lead a reasonable consumer to conclude that Defendant’s

product lines are all “natural” and “effective.”

Defendant’s Product Advertising: Natural

43. Defendant sells the Natural Products to consumers at a ten to twenty

percent premium, based on its advertising representations that they are “natural.”

44.  Since at least September 20, 2012 and up to the filing of this lawsuit,

Defendant has disseminated advertising statements to the public, rising to the level
of a long-term advertising campaign that falsely claims the Natural Products are

“natural.”

45.  Defendant amplifies its representations that the Natural Products are

“natural” with supplemental representations, including that the Natural Products

do not contain harsh chemicals, are safe, are non-toxic, and are plant-based.

Honest Hand Soap

46. Honest Hand Soap product packaging stated and continues to state

that the Honest Hand Soap is “natural.”

11
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47.
August 14, 2015, displaying Honest Hand Soap product packaging:

The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on
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48.

as “non-toxic,” and containing “NO harsh chemicals (ever!),” and in so doing, has

Honest.com described and continues to describe Honest Hand Soap

amplified its representation that Honest Hand Soap is natural.
49.
August 14, 2015, describing Honest Hand Soap as “Natural

The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on

Honestly Free
50. On information and belief, these website statements, and all other

statements accessible on Defendant’s Honest website in August of 2015 that are

excerpted in this Complaint, were available online during the duration of the

12
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Natural Products Class Period, with the exception of website statements about
Honest Sunscreen.

51. By consistently and systematically labeling and advertising Honest
Hand Soap as (A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products
Class Period, Defendant intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Hand
Soap would be exposed to these advertising claims and take them literally.

Honest Dish Soap

52. Honest Dish Soap’s product webpage on Target.com states that the
Honest Dish Soap is “Natural.”

53.  The product description on Target.com also described and continues
to describe Honest Dish Soap as “non-toxic” and containing “no harsh chemicals
(ever!),” and in so doing, has amplified Defendant’s representation that Honest
Dish Soap is natural.

54.  The following excerpted screenshots appeared on Target.com on

August 14, 2015, displaying Honest Dish Soap product packaging:

No harsh chemicals (ever!). Natural, non-toxic,
biodegradable, pH balanced, ultra-concentrated, and
Honestly Free of SLS, SLES, phthalates, synthetic
fragrances, glycols, enzymes, dyes, phosphates, 1,4-
dioxane, chlorine, DEA, formaldehyde, and caustics.

Product Results: Removes Residue, Removes Grease,
Used for Cleaning, Cleaner

13

FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT — Michael v. The Honest
Company, Inc., 2:15-cv-07059-JAK (AGRX)




Case 21

© 00 N o o1 A W N B

N N RN RN N NN R B R B R PP R R
~ O O BN WON P O © 0 N O O M W N - O

5-cv-07059-JAK-AGR Document 36 Filed 01/08/16 Page 14 of 57 Page ID #:257

55.  Target.com includes a disclaimer stating this description “comes from

the product manufacturers.”

MIGHILT AT CITanny Py

white grapefruit

o1

non-toxic  ultra-concentrated + pH balanced
biodegradable * extra suds

56.  Honest Dish Soap product packaging stated and continues to state
“plant-based” and “non-toxic,” and in so doing, has amplified its representation
that Honest Dish Soap is natural.

57.  The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on

August 14, 2015, displaying Honest Dish Soap product packaging:

*3.95

Quantity: @ 1O

Scent

Select Scent -

OR

SAVE UP TO 35%
WHEN YOU

= PRODUCTS OF ONLY
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58. Honest Dish Soap’s product webpage on Honest.com stated and
continues to state that Honest Dish Soap has a “natural” formula; is “non-toxic”;
and contains “no harsh chemicals (ever!)”; and in so doing, has further amplified
its representation that Honest Dish Soap is natural.

59. The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on
August 14, 2015, describing Honest Dish Soap:

60. By consistently and systematically advertising the Honest Dish Soap
as (A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products Class Period,
Defendant intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Dish Soap would be
exposed to these advertising representations, and would take them literally.

Honest Diapers
61. Honest.com states that Honest Diapers are “natural.”
62. The following excerpted screenshots appeared on Honest.com on

August 26, 2015, in the “Diapering” section of the website:

15
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effective, eco-friendly, utterly adorable.

r
f - ‘_I

\\“- :

63.  The Honest.com “Diapering” section provides the following website

“meta-tag” description to search engine crawlers: “<meta content="Buy safe,
natural baby products and eco-friendly disposable diapers. The Honest Company
provides bath, skin care and green cleaning products.” name="description™ />,

64. As aresult of this meta-tag, the representation that Honest Diapers
are “natural” appears verbatim in Google search results for Honest Diapering.

65. The following excerpted screenshot is a Google search conducted for

“Honest Diapering” on August 26, 2015:

16
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GO 8[e Honest Diapering g n

Web Videos Shopping Images News More = Search tools

About 1,520,000 results (0.38 seconds)

Did you mean: Honest Diapers

Shop for Honest Diapering on Google Sponsored @
£ BT P )
b P o 3
IR 1% - T
L d:zl B e
- - 0
-I"E..] P nssle s A.
Honest Diapers, Honest Diapers, Honest Diapers  Infant The Toddler The
Guitars, Size N Bumble Bees... & Wipes Bundle Honest Comp... Honest Comp...
$13.95 $13.95 $79.95 $13.95 $12.99
Honest.com Honest.com Honest.com MNordstrom MNordstrom
% e e e (3)
Honest.com - Official Honest® Diapers
www honest.com/Try-Diapers ~
Your Baby Will Love Honest Diapers. Ultra Absorbent, Extra Soft & Cutel
Honestly Free Guarantee - Save up to 40% - Free Shipping over $50
Diapers Try Us Today
Ultra absorbent and eco-friendly. Sample Our Favorite ltems Today!
Choose one of our cute designs! Discover all the good stuff.
Bundle & Save Up To 40% Organic Baby Powder
Honest products conveniently Certified organic formula to keep
delivered each month. Mix & match! skin feeling dry & comfortable.

Diapers - The Honest Company
https:/iwww_honest.com/baby/honest-diapers ~

$13.95 - In stock

Buy natural, premium and eco-friendly disposable baby diapers from The Honest
Company. Gentle, safe, and non-irritating for the most sensitive skin.

66. The Honest Diapers’ product webpage on Honest.com states that
Honest Diapers are “plant-based” and “safe” and contain “NO HARSH
CHEMICALS (EVER),” and in so doing, has amplified its representation that

Honest Diapers are “natural.”
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67. The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on

August 25, 2015, describing Honest Diapers:

68. The Honest Diapers’ product page on Honest.com previously stated

that Honest Diapers were “100%....plant-based,” and in so doing, further amplified

its representations that Honest Diapers are natural.

69. The following excerpted screenshot appeared on the Internet

Archive’s Wayback Machine on August 26, 2015, accessed by inserting the

Honest.com Diaper Bundle webpage, and selecting January 21, 2013:

A new diaper for a new generation!

100% non-toxic. chlorine-free. sustainable. and plant-based materials — ensuring vour baby 1s safe and NOT exposed to any harsh or synthetic chemicals (ever!)
* Diapers
e Wipes

* Patterns
® Details & Ingredients
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70. By consistently and systematically advertising the Honest Diapers as
(A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products Class Period,
Defendant intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Diapers would be
exposed to these advertising representations and would take them literally.

Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner

71. Honest.com states that Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner is “natural.”

72.  The Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner’s product webpage on Honest.com
provides the following website “meta-tag” description to search engine crawlers:
<meta content="Shop The Honest Company for natural all-purpose cleaner. With
no harsh chemicals, our baby-safe, non-toxic multi-surface cleaner conquers dirt
and grime." name="description" />.

73.  As aresult of this meta-tag, the representation that Honest Multi-
Surface Cleaner is “natural” appears verbatim in Google search results for Honest
Multi-Surface Cleaner.

74.  The following excerpted screenshot is a Google search conducted for

“Multi-Surface Cleaner — The Honest Company” on August 26, 2015:

L: O SIL Multi-Surface Cleaner - The Honest Company

o

The Honest Company honest.com
...... v honestc

Shop All Honest® Products

Multl Surface Cleanef Pledge.com
) n/MultiSurface ~

Multl Surface Cleaner The Honest Company
35 fiwww v honest com/cleaning/honest-surface-cleaner ~
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75.  The Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner product webpage on Honest.com
states that Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner is “naturally fresh,” and “Non-Toxic,”
and that it contains “NO HARSH CHEMICALS (EVER),” and “Repels dust
naturally.” Each of these statements has amplified Defendant’s representation that
Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner is natural.

76.  The following excerpted screenshots appeared on Honest.com on
August 25, 2015:

77. By consistently and systematically advertising the Honest Multi-
Surface Cleaner as (A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products
Class Period, Honest intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Multi-Surface
Cleaner would be exposed to these advertising representations, and would take
them literally.

Honest Sunscreen

78.  Honest Sunscreen originally contained 20 percent zinc oxide, the only
active ingredient. In March 2015, Defendant reformulated Honest Sunscreen to
contain only 9.3 percent zinc oxide, but continued to advertise Honest Sunscreen

as “effective.”
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79. At some point in time during or slightly after March 2015, Defendant
labeled Honest Sunscreen as providing (A) “broad-spectrum mineral-based
protection” or (B) “natural mineral based sun protection.”

80. Defendant amplified these representations by labeling Honest
Sunscreen with the phrase “broad spectrum SPF 30.”

81. Honest.com further amplified these representations by describing

Honest Sunscreen as “highly effective,” “super effective,” and “safe.”
82. These excerpted screenshots appeared on Honest.com on August 14,

2015:

@ Honestly Free
Guarantee

sunscreern Spir su

&

honest

\ 13.95

)
)
\

sunscreen \
lotion \\
i
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83. By consistently and systematically labeling and advertising Honest
Sunscreen as (A) providing “broad-spectrum mineral-based protection”; (B)
providing “natural mineral based sun protection™; (C) “effective”; (D) “highly
effective,” (E) “super effective;” (F) “safe,” and/or (G) providing “broad spectrum
SPF 30” and (H) “honest” throughout the Sunscreen Class Period, Defendant
intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Sunscreen would be exposed to
these advertising representations and take them literally.

84. Defendant’s representations regarding Honest Sunscreen’s sun
protection characteristics are not mere puffery, including because sun protection is
the product’s express purpose and thus any consumer would necessarily rely on
such representations in deciding to purchase the product.

Untrue, Misleading, and/or Deceptive Claims

Natural Goods Advertising

85. Defendant’s representations in advertisements and labels are
misleading, deceptive, and/or untrue.

86. Defendant falsely represented and continues to represent, expressly
and by implication, that the Natural Products are natural.

87.  “Natural” in the context of Defendant’s products means each product
contains no artificial ingredients.

88. The representation that a product is natural is material to a reasonable
consumer.

Synthetic Ingredients Are Not Natural

89. Honest Natural Products that Defendant advertised and/or labeled as
“natural” contain non-natural ingredients.

90. Contrary to Defendant’s representations in advertisements and labels,
including in product descriptions on Honest.com and Target.com, the Honest

Natural Products contain non-natural ingredients as follows:
22
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a. Honest Dish Soap
. Methylisothiazolinone- a synthetic preservative.
Il Cocamidopropyl Betaine- a synthetic surfactant.
ii.  Phenoxyethanol- a synthetic preservative.
b. Honest Hand Soap
I. Phenoxyethanol- see above.
C. Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner
. Methylisothiazolinone- see above.
d. Honest Diapers
I. Sodium Polycrylate- a petrochemical-based additive.

91.  Synthetic ingredients are artificial, not natural.

92.  The Environmental Working Group rates each of these ingredients as
exceeding the organization’s “low hazard” threshold, according to the following
ratings on the organization’s informational website:

(@)  Methylisothiazolinone - EWG Rating: 7 out of 9 — “High
Hazard.”

(b) Cocamidopropyl Betaine - EWG Rating: 4 out of 9 —
“Moderate Hazard.”

(c) Phenoxyethanol - EWG Rating: 4 out of 9 — “Moderate
Hazard.”

(d)  Sodium Polycrylate - EWG Rating: 3 out of 9 — “Moderate
Hazard.”

93. Defendant’s own statements on the “honestly blog” concede that
these ingredients are not natural.

94. Defendant has expressly criticized its competitors for using
“preservatives (and ingredients) with synthetic fragrances,” including

“Methylisothiazolinone.”
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95. Defendant stated on the “honestly blog” that Cocamidopropy| Betaine
“isn’t found in nature,” adding the statement “but that’s the beauty and power of
chemistry!”

96. Defendant stated on the “honestly blog” that the ingredient
Phenoxyethanol is “synthetically produced in a laboratory.”

97. Defendant indicated on the “honestly blog” that the ingredient
Sodium Polycrylate is “petroleum-based.” This statement also contradicts
Defendant’s prior advertising representation that Honest Diapers are 100% plant-
based.

98. As indicated by the statements above, Defendant knowingly
advertises and or labels the Natural Products as natural despite knowing the
Natural Products contain synthetic, non-natural ingredients.

99. Plaintiffs would all consider purchasing Honest Natural Products in
the future if Defendant ceases selling misrepresented products as alleged in this
Complaint.

100. By claiming Natural Products that contain synthetic ingredients are
natural, Defendant knowingly deceived and misled reasonable consumers and
knowingly made representations in advertising and/or labels Defendant knew to be
untrue and would mislead consumers, or which by the exercise of reasonable care
Defendant should have known were untrue and would mislead consumers.

Sunscreen Advertising

101. Defendant falsely represented in advertising and labeling, and
continues to so represent, expressly and by necessary implication, that Honest
Sunscreen is effective, when Defendant knew the only active ingredient in Honest
Sunscreen had been reduced by more than half in March 2015.

102. According to Defendant, “Zinc oxide is the ONLY active sunscreen

ingredient” in Honest Sunscreen.
24
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103. Honest Sunscreen originally contained 20 percent zinc oxide.

104. As of March 15, 2015, Defendant’s website stated Honest
Sunscreen’s zinc oxide content was 20 percent and the Drug Facts on the back of
Honest Sunscreen’s bottle stated “Active Ingredient: Zinc Oxide 20%”:1

O 04 v
» T

sunscreen
lotion

broad spectrum
mineral-bated profection

L LN

pr Resistant (40 Minutes)

reat for the Entire Family!

Purpose
..................... Sunscreen

Uses * Helps prevent sunburn * If used as
directed with other sun protection measures (see
Directions), decreases lg; nisk of skin cancer and
early skin aging caused by the sun

Wamings For external use only
Do not use on damaged or brokenskin__
Whan ircinn thie nrnduct koon nit of aves rinse

Lld.
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105. However, sometime later in March 2015, Defendant quietly
reformulated Honest Sunscreen to contain only 9.3 percent zinc oxide. (In
comparison, other sunscreens typically contain between 18 and 25 percent zinc
oxide.)

106. As of August 12, 2015, Defendant’s website stated Honest
Sunscreen’s zinc oxide content was 9.3 percent and the Drug Facts on the back of

Honest Sunscreen’s bottle stated “Active Ingredient: Zinc Oxide 9.3%":

T2\

|f. "'/‘_'_" A2l

\3

o\ #w /7]

honest \\\!
sunscreeniy
lotion

& 1
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Drug Facts
Active ingredient Purpose
Tric (hagher 2.3 - T ey
llses = helps prevent sunburm = if used as directed with other
wn proteclion measures [(See Directions), decreases the risk of
4 cancer and early skin aging caused by the sun
Wamings '
e wvtornal nen nnlv [

107. Although in March 2015 Defendant reduced the content of zinc
oxide—by its own admission, “the ONLY active sunscreen ingredient” in Honest
Sunscreen—by more than half, it continued to represent that Honest Sunscreen
was effective and provided “broad spectrum SPF 30 sun protection.”

108. The advertising representations that a product is “effective” and
provides “broad-spectrum mineral-based protection” or “natural mineral based sun
protection,” in the context of Honest Sunscreen, mean the product should protect
the user from unhealthy exposure to harmful UV rays.

109. These representations are material to a reasonable consumer. This is
evidenced by Defendants making these representations in labeling and advertising
in online webpage descriptions on Honest.com, and point-of-sale displays, and in
other advertising materials.

110. Defendant knew or should have known its representations would
mislead consumers about Honest Sunscreen’s sun protection characteristics.

Honest Sunscreen Is Ineffective

111. Defendant stated and continues to state that Honest Sunscreen is

“effective” for sunblock protection and provides “broad-spectrum mineral-based

protection” and/or “natural mineral based sun protection,”
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112. These representations are untrue, misleading, and/or deceptive.

113. Defendant sought to induce consumers including Plaintiff to purchase
Honest Sunscreen by making the above representations regarding its alleged health
and safety benefits. As one consumer stated, “I’m not a chemist. . .. But when |
buy a bottle that says SPF 30 on it and it has zinc oxide, | just thought | was
getting her a bottle that would offer some protection.” (Lisa Parker, “Burn Notice:
Angry Parents, Sunburned Kids and Complaints About a Popular Brand of
Sunscreen,” NBC Chicago, http://www.nbcchicago.com/news/local/Angry-
Parents-Complaints-About-Popular-Sunscreen-Brand-318367591.html (last visited
Jan. 4, 2016)).

114. Defendant’s claims regarding Honest Sunscreen’s effectiveness are
directly contradicted by Plaintiffs’ experiences and those of hundreds of other

unhappy customers, to wit:

m Lindsy 2. Follow

Don't buy @Honest sunscreen unless u
want to look like this. Second time I've tried
this stuff and got fried
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F Y. 1] Amaren voem Custamer Revews

I hé Honest Lompany - Sunscreen Lation
SPF 30, 3 Fl 0z

i Horrible product! We went to
Hawail with our kids

By Jaymie Chapman on Jul 30, 2015

Horrible product! We went to Hawall with our Kids:
We sat at the pool for a few hours. Everyone used
henest sunscreen and continued to reapply the
sunscreen, It was like we used baby oil! We were
all extremely bumed! Easpecially my little 2 year

8 old! She had blisters on her shoulder! It is so sad!
N Worst product ever!

Was this review hslpful?

Haiptul (5] et Paslpdul (1)
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1 115. Throughout August 2015, Defendant received numerous customer
13 reviews and complaints alleging Honest Sunscreen did not offer the sun protection
14 it promised and marketed. According to one news story:
15 Jessica Alba’s Honest Company has come under fire by unhappy
16 customers who say the brand’s sunscreen option is sub-par. Several
17 people took to social media to show off the painful-looking sunburns
18 they got after using the product, with many mentioning they were only
19 in the sun for a few minutes. A study done by NBC5 Chicago found
20 that Honest’s sunscreen contains only 9.3 percent non-nano zinc oxide
21 while other products contain 18 to 25 percent of the active ingredient.
2 They wonder if the reduced amount of zinc oxide contributed to the
23 Issues customers were having. Honest changed its formula, which
Y originally had 20 percent zinc oxide, earlier this year but claims to have
o added other components to make up for the reduced amounts.
26
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(See Jihan Forbes, “Jessica Alba Responses to Honest Sunscreen Fails,” The
Fashion Spot, http://www.thefashionspot.com/buzz-news/latest-
news/624761-jessica-alba-honest-sunscreen/ (last visited Jan. 7, 2016)).

116. Defendant’s Amazon marketplace webpage contains documented
customer reviews that detail evidence of sunburn and blisters resulting from
exposure to the sun, after applying Honest Sunscreen.

117. Defendant’s Twitter and Facebook account received numerous
messages published by users who documented sunburn injuries resulting from
exposure to the sun, after applying Honest Sunscreen.

118. Consumer comments on Defendant’s blog also contained numerous
complaints about sunburn and after-effects resulting from exposure to the sun after
applying Honest Sunscreen.

Defendant Knew its Sunscreen Failed to Protect Users as of August 2015

119. Defendant continued to represent that Honest Sunscreen was effective
even after learning that numerous consumers suffered sunburns using Honest
Sunscreen.

120. Defendant responded to the media backlash with a statement that
compounded its deceptive representations regarding Honest Sunscreen.
Specifically, Defendant stated, “Our previous Sunscreen formulation had a 40-
minute water resistance and customers told us that it didn’t apply as easily as they
would’ve liked. Based on our own experience and consumer feedback, we
redesigned our Sunscreen Lotion for 80-minute water resistance and an improved
formulation that allows for easier application and a lighter-weight feel.”

121. Defendant further attempted to create false confidence in Honest
Sunscreen by claiming it was tested by a third party to meet FDA standards, even
though according to the FDA it neither verifies such testing nor requires any

company to share the result of any such testing.
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122. Defendant’s false advertising misconduct is further belied by its own
subsequent actions. According to one news story:

After seeing the rash of complaints NBC 5 Investigates visited some local

stores and found the product was no longer on some store shelves, like

Target where an employee told us it was “discontinued.” The shelves were

nearly empty at the Nordstrom we visited, and “out of stock” for visitors to

the company website. Which made us wonder: is the company quietly

pulling a problem product? (Parker, “Burn Notice,” supra.)

Plaintiffs’ Experience with Defendants’ Advertising and Products

Plaintiffs’ Purchase of the Products

Hand Soap
123. Starting in late 2013 and through the summer of 2015, Plaintiff
Stavroula purchased Honest Hand Soap from Target in the State of Florida.
124. In or about July 2015, Plaintiff Rubin purchased “lemongrass”
Honest Hand Soap from Gelson’s Markets in Los Angeles, California.
Dish Soap
125. Starting in late 2013 and through the summer of 2015, Plaintiff
Stavroula purchased Honest Dish Soap from Target in the State of Florida.
126. In or about July 2015, Plaintiff Rubin purchased “white grapefruit”
Honest Dish Soap from Gelson’s Markets in Los Angeles, California
Sunscreen
127. In late April or early May 2015, Plaintiff Michael purchased Honest
Sunscreen at Costco Wholesale in West Des Moines, lowa.
128. On June 26, 2015 Ms. Hembree purchased Honest Sunscreen from

Costco Wholesale in Burlington, Kansas.
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129. On March 29, 2015, Ms. Lung purchased Honest Sunscreen from
Costco Wholesale in Burbank, California.

Plaintiffs’ Exposure to the False Advertising and the Resulting Harm

130. Plaintiffs Rubin, Michael, Da Silva, Hembree, and Lung all actually
witnessed Defendant’s advertising campaign.

131. Starting in at least February 2015, Rubin became aware of the Honest
Company’s representations that its Hand Soap and Dish Soap, along with its other
products, were “natural” and non-toxic. From approximately February 2015
through at least July 2015, he viewed Defendant’s website several times, he saw
Defendant’s ads on Facebook and saw banner ads on other websites, promoting its
products as “natural”. He also viewed videos of Jessica Alba on television and the
internet promoting Defendant’s image as a company that only sells natural
products

132. When Rubin purchased the Honest Hand Soap in or about July 2015,
he saw Defendant’s representation on the label that the product was “natural.”

133. Rubin bought the Honest Hand Soap and Dish Soap, which were
marked up at a premium as compared to comparable products, based on
Defendant’s representations on its labels, advertising and marketing that the
products were natural.

134. Starting in late 2013 and through 2015, Plaintiff Da Silva read and
generally believed that Honest products were natural, non-toxic, and plant based.
Plaintiff Da Silva saw Defendant’s advertising and labeling representations on
product packaging, in-store displays, internet advertising, magazines, and
advertising and articles in parenting magazines.

135. Plaintiff Da Silva bought the Honest Hand Soap and Dish Soap,

which were marked up at a premium as compared to comparable products, based
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on Defendant’s representations on its labels, advertising and marketing that the
products were natural.

136. As stated above, Defendant knew or should have known that its
representations regarding the Natural Products would mislead consumers into
believing those products did not contain synthetic ingredients.

137. Plaintiffs Rubin and Da Silva did not know and had no reason to
suspect that Defendant misrepresented the characteristics of Honest Hand Soap
and Dish Soap.

138. As aresult of his payment of a premium to Defendant for these
Natural Products, both Rubin and Da Silva experienced economic harm.

139. Prior to purchasing Honest Sunscreen, Plaintiffs Michael, Hembree,
and Lung all saw Defendant’s representations that, among other things, Honest
Sunscreen offered “broad spectrum SPF 30 sun protection.

140. For example, in the months prior to her purchase of the Sunscreen in
June 2015, Plaintiff Hembree observed Defendant’s advertising and marketing of
its products, including the sunscreen, as natural, safe and effective, on television,
on Defendant’s Facebook page, its website, and in floor displays at Costco and
other stores.

141. Starting in late 2013, Plaintiff Lung became aware of Honest
Sunscreen as a consumer products brand. At least as early as 2013, she purchased
pre-2015 formulations of Honest Sunscreen. Lung reasonably believed that the
Honest Sunscreen was effective, based upon Defendant’s brand and company
name, and based upon her experience with earlier versions of the Honest
Sunscreen product.

142. Plaintiff Lung purchased Honest Sunscreen from CostCo Wholesale
on March 29, 2015. In addition to purchasing a product she believed was

effective, based upon her experience with previous Honest Sunscreen products,
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Lung took special notice that the Honest Sunscreen product she purchased was
labelled as SPF 30, and that it offered broad spectrum protection.

143. Plaintiffs Michael and Hembree experienced sunburns as a result of
using the product. Plaintiff Lung’s children experienced sunburns as a result of
using the product.

144. Michael used Honest Sunscreen as directed in May 2015 and suffered
a severe sunburn resulting in blistering and peeling.

145. Hembree used Honest Sunscreen as directed starting in August 2015
and suffered a severe sunburn as well.

146. Lung applied Honest Sunscreen on her two sons during her family’s
regular beach outings, in the spring of 2015. Lung applied the sunscreen and
abided by package directions, including instructions specific to outdoor use near
water. Lung’s two children suffered sunburns after using Honest Sunscreen.
Assuming that she had misapplied the sunblock, she tried to use the product again,
during a second outing. Lung’s children again experienced sunburn, after which
she stopped using Honest Sunscreen.

147. Prior to their purchases, Plaintiffs did not know and had no reason to
know Defendant misrepresented Honest Sunscreen’s sun protection
characteristics.

148. Plaintiffs each paid for an ineffective Honest Sunscreen product and
experienced economic harm. Had Plaintiffs known that Defendant falsely
marketed and sold Honest Sunscreen, they would not have purchased the Honest
Sunscreen product.

Plaintiffs’ Reliance Was Reasonable

149. Plaintiffs reasonably relied on Defendant’s own statements and

advertising concerning the particular qualities and benefits of their products.
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150. Plaintiffs read and relied upon the labels on products in making their
purchasing decisions, along with viewing the statements and advertising on
Defendant’s website and elsewhere on the internet.

151. A reasonable consumer would consider the statements and
advertising regarding the sun protection characteristics of a sunscreen. Here,
Plaintiffs relied on the specific statements and representations by Defendant that
the Honest Sunscreen would provide SPF 30 protection and offered the “best
broad spectrum protection.”

152. A reasonable consumer would consider the ingredients and physical
properties when looking to purchase a natural or organic product. Here, Plaintiffs
relied on the specific statements and representations by Defendant that the Natural
Products were natural supplemental representations, including that the Natural
Products do not contain harsh chemicals, are safe, are non-toxic, and are plant-

based.

Defendant’s Knowledge and Notice of its Breaches of its
Express and Implied Warranties

153. Defendant had sufficient notice of its breaches of its express and
implied warranties. Defendant had and has exclusive knowledge of the physical
and chemical make-up of its Sunscreen and the Natural Products.

154. For instance, as early as June 28, 2012, a consumer inquired with
Defendant about its inadequate disclosure that its cleaning products contained

cocamidopropy! betaine, phenoxyethanol, and methylisothiazolinone?:

2 https://gimmethegoodstuff.org/the-honest-company-by-jessica-alba-good-bad-or-

sneaky/#comments
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katie says
Wednesday, June 27th, 2012 1:27 PM at 1:27 pm

Where does it say that the dish soap contains the ingredients: cocamidopropyl betaine,
phenoxyethanol, and methylisothiazolinone. On the bottle it says water and coconut oil derived
surfactants. Are all those things what makes coconut cil derived surcactants?

Update before | even send. | just need to say, | am surprised that the label of a company who's goal
is to be completely transparent, was not so transparent. | went to the website and now the dish soap
has an 'updated scent’ of white grapefruit and spells out those ingredients you mentioned instead of
what's on my bottle, "Water, and coconut oil derived surfactants.”. | am disappointed in the 'honest’

company and will not be purchasing from them again

Reply

Maia says
Thursday, June 28th, 2012 6:25 PM at 6:25 pm

Hi Katie-

| got my information from the website and a couple of phone calls to the company; I've not yet held a
bottle of the soap in my hand, and I'm disappeinted to hear that the ingredients listed there are
vague and, frankly, sneaky. | agree that there is an inconsistency between the ostensible mission of
the company and not only the inclusion of such chemicals, but also the intentional obscuring of their
inclusion! That said, | have to reiterate what | said in my post: | think Jessica Alba is sincerely
passionate about making safe products, and the vast majority of the Honest line is clean, safe,
and...well, honest. It's unfortunate that the dish soap is such a glaring exception

155. Defendant was also notified of the defective nature of its Honest
Sunscreen through consumer contacts, complaints, and news related articles.
(David Kroll, “The Failure of Jessica Alba’s Honest Company Sunscreen
Explained,” Forbes, http://www.forbes.com/sites/davidkroll/2015/08/03/the-
failure-of-jessica-albas-honest-company-sunscreen-explained/ (Last accessed on
Aug. 3, 2015).)

156. Indeed, on information and belief, Honest itself chose to run tests on
Its sunscreen based on the numerous complaints, articles and bad press on August
2, 2015. (Jessica Fecteau, “Jessica Alba’s Honest Company Responses to

Sunscreen Complaints: “We Take All Consumer Feedback Very Seriously.

People.com, available online at http://www.people.com/article/jessica-alba-honest-
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company-sunscreen (last accessed Jan. 7, 2016).) Thus, Defendant had knowledge
and notice from proposed class members prior to filing on any complaint.

157. Plaintiff Michael and Rubin also timely sent Defendant a letter
detailing the bases for their claims of breach of implied and express warranties.
These letters were sent months before the filing of this consolidated complaint.

Privity Exists With Plaintiffs and the Proposed Class

158. Defendant knew that consumers such as Plaintiffs and the proposed
Class would be the ultimate user of the products and target of its advertising and
statements.

159. Defendant intended that its statements and representations would be
considered by the end-users of its products, including Plaintiffs and the proposed
Class.

160. Defendant directly marketed to Plaintiffs through its statements on its
websites and packaging.

161. Plaintiffs are the intended beneficiaries of the express and implied
warranties.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

162. Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves and, pursuant to

Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of two nationwide
classes (the “Honest Natural Products Class” and the “Honest Sunscreen Class™)
that include other similarly situated purchasers of the Honest Products who
experienced the same or substantially similar harm as a result of Defendant’s false
advertising.

HONEST NATURAL PRODUCTS CLASS: All U.S. residents who have

purchased Honest Dish Soap, Honest Hand Soap, Honest Diapers, Honest or

Multi-Surface Cleaner (the “Natural Product(s)”) from any retail store or website
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and who did not register for membership with the Honest Company during the
applicable statute of limitations.
HONEST SUNSCREEN CLASS: All U.S. residents who have purchased

Honest Sunscreen from any retail store or website and who did not register for

membership with the Honest Company during the applicable statute of limitations.

Both of the Classes exclude any judge or magistrate assigned to this case;
all persons who make a timely election to be excluded from the Class;
governmental entities; Defendant and any entity in which Defendant has a
controlling interest, and its officers, directors, legal representatives, successors and
assigns; and any person who purchased the Honest Products for resale.

163. As used herein, the terms “Natural Products Class Members” and
“Sunscreen Class Members” shall mean and refer to the members of the respective
Classes described above.

164. Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend the Class definitions, and to add
subclasses, as warranted by facts discovered.

165. Class-wide treatment is appropriate because Plaintiffs can prove the
elements of their claims on a class-wide basis using the same evidence as would
be used to prove those elements in individual actions alleging the same claims.

166. Numerosity—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(1). The
members of the Classes are so numerous that joinder is impracticable. Upon
information and belief, there are at least thousands of individual purchasers of
Honest Natural Products and Honest Sunscreen. The precise number of Honest
Natural Products Class Members or Honest Sunscreen Class Members is unknown
to Plaintiffs, but may be ascertained, including by objective criteria. Members of
the classes may be notified of the pendency of this action by recognized, Court-

approved notice dissemination methods.
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167. Commonality and Predominance—Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
23(a)(2) & 23(b)(3). This action involves common questions of law or fact, which
predominate over any questions affecting individual members of the Classes.
Common questions include:

(@)  Whether Defendant owed a duty of care to the Honest Natural
Products Class and/or the Honest Sunscreen Class.

(b)  Whether Defendant represented and continues to represent that
certain Honest Natural Products are natural,

(c)  Whether Defendant represented and continues to represent that
Honest Sunscreen is effective;

(d)  Whether Defendant’s representations in advertising and/or labeling
are false, deceptive, and misleading;

()  Whether those representations are likely to deceive a reasonable
consumer;

()  Whether Defendant had knowledge that those representations were
false, deceptive, and misleading;

() Whether Defendant continues to disseminate those representations
despite knowledge that the representations are false, deceptive, and misleading;

(h)  Whether a representation that a product is natural is material to a
reasonable consumer of natural products;

(i)  Whether a representation that a product is effective is material to a
reasonable consumer of products;

()  Whether Defendant knowingly failed to protect the Sunscreen Class
from the risks and consequences of decreasing the amount of zinc oxide in Honest
Sunscreen;

(k)  Whether California law applies to the claims of the proposed Classes;

()  Whether Defendant breached express and implied warranties;
40
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(m) Whether Defendant violated California Business and Professions
Code § 17200 et seq.;

(n)  Whether Defendant violated California Business and Professions
Code § 17500 et seq.;

(0) Whether Defendant violated California Civil Code § 1750 et seq.;

(p)  Whether Defendant was unjustly enriched,

(@) Whether Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes are entitled to
actual, statutory, and punitive damages; and

() Whether Plaintiffs and members of the Classes are entitled to
declaratory and injunctive relief.

168. Defendant engaged in a common course of conduct giving rise to the
legal rights sought to be enforced by Plaintiffs each individually and on behalf of
the other members of the Classes. Identical statutory violations and business
practices and harms are involved. Individual questions, if any, are not prevalent in
comparison to the numerous common questions that dominate this action.

169. Typicality—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(3). Plaintiffs’
claims are typical of the claims of the other members of each of the Classes
because, among other things, all members of the Classes were comparably injured
through the uniform misconduct described above and were subject to Defendant’s
false, deceptive, misleading, and unfair labeling and marketing practices,
including the false claims that the Honest Natural Products are natural and the
Honest Sunscreen is effective. Plaintiffs do not have any interests adverse to the
Classes.

170. Adequacy of Representation—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
23(a)(4). Plaintiff are adequate representatives of the members of each of the
Classes because their interests do not conflict with the interests of the other

members of the Class they seek to represent; they have retained competent counsel
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with experience in complex class action litigation; and Plaintiffs will prosecute
this action vigorously. The interests of the members of the Classes will be fairly
and adequately protected by Plaintiffs and their counsel.

171. Declaratory and Injunctive Relief—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
23(b)(2). Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to
Plaintiffs and other members of the Classes, thereby making appropriate final
injunctive relief and declaratory relief, as described below, with respect to the
members of the Classes, each as a respective whole.

172. Superiority—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(3). A class
action is superior to any other available means for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy, and no unusual difficulties are likely to be
encountered in the management of this class action. The damages or other
financial detriment suffered by Plaintiffs and the other members of the Classes are
relatively small compared to the burden and expense that would be required to
individually litigate their claims against Defendant, so it would be impracticable
for members of the Classes to seek redress for Defendant’s wrongful conduct on
an individual basis. Individualized litigation would also pose the threat of
significant administrative burden to the court system. Individual cases would
create the potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments, and would
increase delay and expense to all parties and the court system. By contrast the
class action device presents far fewer management difficulties and provides the
streamlined benefits of singular adjudication and comprehensive supervision by
one court. Given the similar nature of the class members’ claims, the Classes will
be easily managed by the Court and the parties and will be managed more
efficiently in this integrated class action than through multiple separate actions in

the various states.
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CLAIMS FOR RELIEF
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violation of California’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act
California Civil Code 8§ 1750 et seq.

173. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this Complaint.

174. Plaintiffs bring this claim for relief pursuant to the California
Consumers Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA”).

175. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(5),
which prohibits “Representing that goods or services have . . . characteristics,
ingredients, uses, benefits, or quantities which they do not have.”

176. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(7),
which prohibits “Representing that goods or services are of a particular standard,
quality or grade . . . if they are of another.”

177. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(9),
which prohibits “Advertising goods . . . with intent not to sell them as advertised.”

178. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(16),
which prohibits “Representing that the subject of a transaction has been supplied
in accordance with a previous representation when it has not.”

179. Honest Products are “goods” within the meaning of Civil Code §
1761(a) and 8 1770.

180. Defendant is a “person,” as defined by Civil Code § 1761(c).

181. Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes are “consumers” within the
meaning of Civil Code § 1761(d) and § 1770.

182. Plaintiffs Rubin and Da Silva and members of the Classes purchased
Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish Soap, and Honest Sunscreen for personal, family,

and household purposes as meant by Civil Code § 1761(d).
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183. Each purchase of the Honest Products by Plaintiffs and each member
of the Classes constitutes a “transaction” within the meaning of Civil Code 8§
1761(e) and 1770.

184. In fact, Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the Honest Natural Products
Class Members relied upon the representations in advertising and labels to their
detriment and paid a higher price for Honest Natural Products than they would
have paid for products that are not natural.

185. In fact, Plaintiffs Michael, Hembree, and Lung and the Honest
Sunscreen Class Members relied upon the representations in advertisements and
labels to their detriment and paid for the ineffective Honest Sunscreen products.

186. Defendant’s conduct is ongoing and, unless restrained, likely to recur.

187. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and members of the Classes, seek
injunctive relief prohibiting Defendant from engaging in the misconduct described
herein.

188. Plaintiffs seek attorneys’ fees and costs as allowed by law.

189. CLRA Civil Code 8§ 1782(d) codifies Plaintiffs’ right to amend
without leave of court to include a request for damages.

190. On September 3, 2015, Plaintiff Rubin sent a CLRA 8§ 1782 (a) notice
letter to Defendant, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Defendant
was served with a copy of the letter on September 14, 2015.

191. On September 24, 2015, Plaintiff Michael senta CLRA 8§ 1782 (a)
notice to Defendant, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B. Defendant
was served with a copy of the letter shortly after Plaintiff Michael sent the letter.

192. Defendant failed to provide appropriate relief for its violations of
CLRA 88 1770(a)(5), (7), (9) and (16) within 30 days of receipt of Plaintiff
Rubin’s notification. In accordance with Civ. Code 8§ 1782(b), Plaintiffs and the
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Classes are entitled, under CLRA § 1780, to recover and obtain the following
relief for Defendant’s violations of CLRA 88 1770(a)(5),(7), (9) and (16):

(@) actual damages under CLRA § 1780(a)(1);

(b) restitution of property under CLRA § 1780(a)(3);

(c) punitive damages under CLRA § 1780(a)(4) and because
Defendant has engaged in fraud, malice or oppression;

(d) attorneys’ fees and costs under CLRA 8§ 1780(d); and

(e) any other relief the Court deems proper under CLRA 1780(a)(5).

193. Plaintiff Rubin previously prepared and filed a declaration stating
facts showing that the Rubin action was filed in a court described as a proper place
for the trial of the action. A copy of that declaration is attached as Exhibit D.
Since Defendant sought to transfer the Rubin action to this District, Defendant has
acknowledged that this District is a proper place for trial of this Action, and a
supplemental CLRA § 1780(d) declaration from Plaintiffs is not required.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

For Violation of California’s False Advertising Law,

California Business & Professions Code 88 17500 et seq.

194. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in
this First Amended Complaint.

195. California’s False Advertising Law, Business & Professions Code §8
17500 et seq. (“FAL”), provides that “[i]t is unlawful for any . . . corporation . . .
with intent . . . to dispose of . . . personal property . . . to induce the public to enter
into any obligation relating thereto, to make or disseminate or cause to be made or
disseminated . . . from this state before the public in any state, in any newspaper or
other publication, or any advertising device, or by public outcry or proclamation,

or in any other manner or means whatever, including over the Internet, any

45

FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT — Michael v. The Honest
Company, Inc., 2:15-cv-07059-JAK (AGRX)




Case 2:

© 00 N o o1 A W N B

N N RN RN N NN R B R B R PP R R
~ O O BN WON P O © 0 N O O M W N - O

1

5-cv-07059-JAK-AGR Document 36 Filed 01/08/16 Page 46 of 57 Page ID #:289

statement . . . which is untrue or misleading, and which is known, or which by the
exercise of reasonable care should be known, to be untrue or misleading . . ..”

196. Defendant’s acts and practices as described herein have deceived
and/or are likely to deceive Plaintiffs and the Honest Natural Products Class
Members and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members.

197. By its actions, Defendant has been and is disseminating uniform
marketing statements concerning the Honest Products, and the performance, facts
connect with, and disposition of Honest Products, which by their nature are untrue
or misleading, and which Defendant knew or should have known were untrue
and/or misleading, within the meaning of California Business & Professions Code
8§ 17500 et seq.

198. Defendant used numerous advertising devices and other manner and
means to disseminate these statements, including those set forth more fully
elsewhere in this Complaint.

199. The statements are likely to deceive and continue to deceive the
consuming public for the reasons detailed above.

200. Defendant intended, and continues to intend, that Plaintiffs and the
members of the Classes rely upon the untrue and/or leading statements set forth
more fully elsewhere in this Complaint.

201. In fact, Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes relied upon
Defendant’s statements to their detriment.

202. The above described untrue and misleading marketing representations
Honest disseminated continue to have a likelihood to deceive Plaintiffs and
members of the Classes.

203. Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes have experienced an

economic injury as a result of Defendant’s untrue and/or misleading statements.
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204. Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the members of the Honest Natural
Products Class purchased Honest Natural Products and paid a premium for them
based on Defendant’s untrue and/or misleading statements.

205. Plaintiffs Michael, Hembree, and Lung and the members of the
Honest Sunscreen Class purchased ineffective Honest Sunscreen products, which
they would never have purchased but for Defendant’s untrue and/or misleading
statements.

206. Plaintiffs on behalf of all members of the Classes seek equitable relief
requiring Defendants to refund and restore to Plaintiffs and all members of the
Classes the premiums they paid for Honest Natural Products and all monies they
paid for Honest Sunscreen in an amount to be determined by this Court but at least
$5,000,000, and injunctive relief prohibiting Defendants from engaging in the
misconduct described herein.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

207. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this First Amended Complaint.

208. Plaintiffs assert this claim on behalf of themselves and the members
of the Classes against Defendant.

209. Defendant’s misconduct violated the Unfair Competition Law,
Business and Professions Code 8§ 17200 et seq. (“UCL”").

210. Defendant’s misconduct is unlawful under the UCL, as it violates:

(a) California’s FAL, California Business & Professions Code 88 17500
et seq., as set forth more fully above, supra.

(b) California’s CLRA, California Civil Code 8§ 1750 et seq., as set forth

more fully above, supra.
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(c)  Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15
U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce; and

(d)  Section 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52, which prohibits the
dissemination of any false advertisement in or affecting commerce for the purpose
of inducing, or which is likely to induce, the purchase of food, drugs, devices,
services, or cosmetics.

(e)  Plaintiffs reserve the right to identify additional provisions of law
violated by Defendant as further investigation and discovery are undertaken and
additional facts are discovered.

211. Defendant’s misrepresentations and its false and misleading
advertising constitute “unfair” business acts and practices under the UCL.

212. Defendant’s misconduct offends established public policy and is
unethical, and/or substantially injurious to Plaintiffs and the members of the
Classes.

213. Defendant’s misconduct undermines and violates the policies codified
in the FAL and the CLRA.

214. There is no legitimate utility of Defendant’s misconduct, let alone any
that would outweigh the harm to Plaintiff and the members of the Classes.

215. Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes could not have reasonably
avoided the injury each of them suffered, as reasonable consumers had no way of
reasonably ascertaining the Honest Products are misbranded and are not properly
labeled or advertised, and were at all relevant times dissuaded from avoiding any
injury by Defendant’s long term advertising campaign.

216. Defendant’s misrepresentations and its false and misleading

advertising regarding Honest Products constitute “fraudulent” business acts and
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practices because members of the consuming public, including Plaintiffs and the
members of the Classes, were and are likely to be deceived thereby.

217. In fact, Plaintiff Rubin and the Honest Natural Products Class
Members relied upon Defendant’s representations on labels and in advertisements
to their detriment and paid a higher price for Honest Natural Products than they
would have paid for products that are not natural.

218. In fact, Plaintiffs Michael, Rubin, Hembree, and Lung, and the
Honest Sunscreen Class Members relied upon Defendant’s representations on
labels and in advertisements to their detriment and paid for ineffective products
they would not have purchased but for Defendant’s untrue and/or misleading
statements.

219. Defendant’s conduct is ongoing and unless restrained, likely to recur.

220. Plaintiffs and each Class Member has been injured in fact, and has
lost money or property, and each is entitled to restitution and injunctive relief.

221. Defendant should be required to pay damages and/or make restitution
to Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes and pay for Plaintiffs’ in an amount to
be determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000 in the aggregate, as well as
Plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ attorneys’ fees.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
BREACH OF EXPRESS WARRANTY

222. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this First Amended Complaint.

223. As set forth hereinabove, Defendant made representations to
Plaintiffs and members of the Classes that, among other things, Honest Sunscreen
provides “broad spectrum SPF 30” sun protection and that it is “super safe and
super effective” and that it provides the “best broad spectrum protection for your

family,” and Honest Natural Products are “natural.”
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224. The representations set forth herein as to the Natural Products and the
Sunscreen constitute express warranties.

225. These promises became part of the basis of the bargain between the
parties and thus constituted express warranties.

226. Plaintiffs and the Class Members reasonably relied on these promises.

227. On the basis of these express warranties, Defendant sold and
Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members purchased Honest Sunscreen,
and Defendant sold and Plaintiffs and the Honest Natural Products Class Members
purchased the Honest Natural Products.

228. Honest Sunscreen did not offer the promised sun protection and
therefore Defendant breached its express warranties. As a result of Defendant’s
breach, Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members did not receive goods
as warranted by Defendant.

229. The Honest Natural Products contained unnatural ingredients and
therefore Defendant breached its express warranties. As a result, Plaintiffs and the
Honest Natural Products Class Members did not receive goods as warranted by
Defendant.

230. Privity exists because Defendant expressly warranted to Plaintiffs and
the Honest Sunscreen Class Members that Honest Sunscreen would provide SPF
30 sun protection on its labeling, which labeling was reviewed and relied upon by
Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members.

231. Privity exists because Defendant expressly warranted to Plaintiffs and
the Honest Natural Products Class Members that the Honest Natural Products did
not contain natural products, including on the labeling of Honest Hand Soap,
which labeling was reviewed and relied upon by Plaintiffs and the Honest Natural

Products Class Members.
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232. As a proximate result of Defendant’s breaches of warranty, Plaintiffs
and members of the Classes have been damaged in an amount to be determined at
trial.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Breach Of Implied Warranty Of Merchantability
(California Commercial Code § 2314)

233. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this First Amended Complaint.

234. Plaintiffs brings this claim on behalf of themselves and the proposed
Honest Sunscreen Class.

235. As set forth hereinabove, Defendant made representations to
Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members that, among other things,
Honest Sunscreen provides “broad spectrum SPF 30” sun protection and that it is
“super safe and super effective” and that it provides the “best broad spectrum
protection for your family.”

236. Defendant was a merchant with respect to goods of this kind which
were sold to Plaintiff and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members, and there was in
the sale to Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class an implied warranty that
those goods were merchantable.

237. Defendant breached the implied warranty of merchantability when it
sold Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members Honest Sunscreen that,
among other things, did not conform to the promises or affirmations of fact made
on its labels.

238. Privity exists as Defendant directly marketed Honest Sunscreen to

Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members through its product labeling.

o1
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239. As aresult of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiffs and the Honest
Sunscreen Class Members did not receive goods as impliedly warranted by
Defendant to be merchantable.

240. As a proximate result of this breach of warranty by Defendant,
Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members have been damaged in an
amount to be determined at trial.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Negligent Misrepresentation

241. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in
this First Amended Complaint.

242. Defendant had a duty to disclose to Plaintiffs and the Honest
Sunscreen Class Members Honest Sunscreen’s actual quality and characteristics.

243. Defendant negligently and/or carelessly misrepresented, omitted and
concealed from consumers material facts relating to Honest Sunscreen’s quality
and characteristics including but not limited to its SPF factor and other sun
protection characteristics.

244. Defendant’s misrepresentations and omissions were material and
concerned the specific characteristics and quality of Honest Sunscreen a
reasonable consumer would consider in purchasing sunscreen.

245. Defendant made such false and misleading statements and omissions
on its website and product labeling, and in its advertisements and warranties, with
the intention of inducing Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members to
purchase Honest Sunscreen.

246. As a result of Defendant’s misstatements, it was under a duty to
disclose facts necessary to correct those misstatements. Further, Defendant was in
a better position to discover the misrepresentations than Plaintiffs because
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Defendant controlled its own design, manufacturing, testing, and marketing
processes.

247. At the time it made the representations, Defendant knew, or by the
exercise of reasonable care should have known, that the statements were false and
that Honest Sunscreen suffered from the defects detailed above.

248. Defendant made such claims about Honest Sunscreen with the intent
to induce Plaintiffs and Honest Sunscreen Class Members to purchase Honest
Sunscreen.

249. Plaintiffs and Honest Sunscreen Class Members justifiably relied
upon Defendant’s misrepresentations about Honest Sunscreen’s quality and
characteristics. Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members were unaware
of the falsity of Defendant’s misrepresentations and omissions and, as a result,
justifiably relied on them in deciding to purchase Honest Sunscreen. Had
Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members been aware of the true nature
and quality of Honest Sunscreen, they would not have purchased the product.

250. As adirect and proximate result of Defendant’s misrepresentations
and omissions of material fact, Plaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class
Members have suffered and will continue to suffer damages and losses as alleged
herein in an amount to be determined at trial.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Quasi-Contract (Money Had And Received)

251. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in
this First Amended Complaint.

252. Defendant unjustly retained a benefit at the expense of Plaintiffs and
the members of the Classes in the form of substantial revenues and payments from

Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes for the Honest Products and from
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Defendant’s conduct in misrepresenting the Honest Products in labels and
advertisements.

253. Based on the mistake, Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes paid
for the Honest Products.

254. It would be unjust and inequitable for Defendant to retain the benefits
it received and continues to receive from Plaintiff Rubin and the Honest Natural
Products Class Members for the premiums they paid in exchange for products
Defendant falsely represented as “natural,” absent full repayment to Plaintiff
Rubin and the Honest Natural Products Class Members who purchased the Honest
Natural Products.

255. It would be unjust and inequitable for Defendant to retain the benefits
Defendant received and continues to receive from Plaintiffs Rubin, Michael,
Hembree, and Lung, and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members, absent full
repayment to the Plaintiffs and the Sunscreen Class Members who purchased
Honest Sunscreen.

256. Plaintiffs seek restitution on all of the inequitable payments and
profits Defendant retained from Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes in an
amount to be determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and the Classes, pray
for:

A.  Anorder certifying the Classes and appointing Plaintiffs as the
representatives of the Classes, and appointing counsel of record for Plaintiffs as
counsel for the Classes;

B.  Declaratory and injunctive relief as permitted by law or equity,
including enjoining Defendant from continuing the unlawful practices described

herein, and directing Defendant to identify, with Court supervision, victims of the
o4
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1 [|misconduct and pay them restitution and disgorgement of all profits and unjust
2 ||enrichment Defendant acquired by means of any business practice declared by this
3 ||Court to be unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent;
4 C.  An Order for Defendant to engage in a corrective advertising
5 ||campaign;
6 D.  Actual damages, including under CLRA 8§ 1780(a)(1), in an amount
7 ||to be determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000;
8 E. Restitution, disgorgement, and/or constructive trust on all of the
9 ||inequitable payments and profits Defendant retained from Plaintiffs and the
10 |{members of the Classes, including under CLRA 8§ 1780(a)(2), in an amount to be
11 ||determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000;
12 F. Punitive damages under CLRA 8 1780(a)(4) and because Defendant
13 |{has engaged in fraud, malice or oppression;
14 G.  Attorneys’ fees, per Cal. Civil Code 1780(d) and California Code of
15 ||Civil Procedure § 1201.5;
16 H.  Expenses and costs of this action;
17 l. Pre-judgment and post-judgment interest; and
18 J. Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper,
19 ||including under CLRA § 1780(a)(5).
20 ||Dated: January 8, 2015
21 By /s/ Nicholas A. Carlin
Nicholas A. Carlin
22 Conor H. Kennedy
23 Phillips, Erlewine, Given & Carlin LLP
39 Mesa Street, Suite 201-The Presidio
24 San Francisco, CA 94129
o5 Telephone: 415-398-0900
Email: nac@phillaw.com
26 chk@phillaw.com
27
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/s/ Leonard B. Simon

The Law Offics of Leonard B. Simon
655 West Broadway, Suite 1900

San Diego, CA 92101

Telephone: 619-338-4549

Email: Isimon@rgrdlaw.com

/s/ Rebecca A. Peterson

Rebecca A. Peterson

Robert K. Shelquist

Lockridge, Grindal, Nauen P.L.L.P.

100 Washington Avenue South,

Suite 2200

Minneapolis, MN 55401

Telephone: 312-339-6900

Email: rapeterson@locklaw.com
rkshelquist@Ilocklaw.com

/s/ Jon W. Borderud

Jon W. Borderud

Law Offices of Jon W. Borderud
2028 CIiff Drive

Santa Barbara, CA 93109
Telephone: 310-621-7004
Email: borderudlaw@cox.net

Attorneys for Plaintiffs _
Shane Michael, Jonathan D. Rubin
Stavroula Da Silva, Dreama Hembree,
and Ethel Lung
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JURY DEMAND
Plaintiffs hereby demand a jury trial on all issues so triable.
Dated: January 8, 2015

By: /s/ Nicholas A. Carlin
Nicholas A. Carlin

ATTESTATION

I, Nicholas A. Carlin, am the ECF user whose identification and password is

being used to file the instant document. | hereby attest that all counsel whose
electronic signatures appear above provided their authority and concurrence to file

this document.

/s/ Nicholas A. Carlin
Nicholas A. Carlin
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LLE

39 Mesa Street
Suite 201

The Presidio
San Francisco
California
94129

Tel: 415.398.0900
Fax: 415.398.0911
www.phillaw.com

Phillips, Erlewine, Given & Carlin LLP

September 3, 2015

Brian Lee, Chief Executive Officer
The Honest Company, Inc.

2700 Pennsylvana Ave., Ste. 1200
Santa Mon ca, CA 90404

Crag Gatarz, Registered Agent for Service of Process
The Honest Company, Inc.

2700 Pennsylvana Ave., Ste. 1200

Santa Monca, CA 90404

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Re: Notice Per California Consumer Legal Remedies Act

Dear Mr. Lee:

We represent Jonathan D. Rubin. Pursuant to the California Consumer Legal
Remedies Act (“CLRA”), California Civil Code § 1750, et seq. (specifically, §§ 1782(a)(5),
(7), (9) and (16), Mr. Rubin, on behalf of himself and all other similarly situated consumers
in the United States, ( collectively, the “Class”), through his undersigned counsel, hereby
notifies you that The Honest Company, Inc.’s (“Honest’s”) practice of advertising and
marketing Honest products as natural and effective violates the CLRA as set forth in more
detail below. We demand that Honest rectify the violations of the CLRA within 30 days of
receipt of this letter.

Honest states that many of its products are “natural” and “naturally derived.” Honest
uses these terms to describe its Dish Soap, its Hand Soap, its Multi-Surface Cleaner, and its
Diapers. Honest puts “natural” on the label for Honest Hand Soap. Honest includes
“natural” in the product description for Honest Dish Soap on Target.com. Honest promotes
the Diapering section on Honest.com with claims its diapers are “natural.” Honest promotes
its Multi-Surface Cleaner using the same claims. In conjunction with Honest’s marketing
statements, the word “honest” encourages consumers to take Honest’s marketing statements
literally. After all, reasonable consumers expect they can take an “honest” company at its
word.

Mr. Rubin purchased Honest hand soap, dish soap and sunscreen from Gelson’s
Markets in Los Angeles, reasonably believing that they were both natural and effective.

Despite Honest’s marketing statements, Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish Soap,
Honest Diapers, and Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner contain synthetic ingredients. Honest

San Francisco | Los Angeles



Case 2:15-cv-07059-JAK-AGR Document 36-1 Filed 01/08/16 Page 3 of 4 Page ID #:303

B. Lee, CEO, The Honest Company, Inc.
September 3, 2015
Page 2 of 3

admits this in blog posts, which contradict Honest product labels and marketing statements. Honest
Dish Soap and Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner contain Methylisothizaolinone. Honest has expressly
criticized its competitors for using Methylisothiazolinone, referring to the ingredient as synthetic.
Honest Dish Soap contains Cocamidopropyl Betaine, which “isn’t found in nature,” according to the
Honest blog. Both Honest Dish Soap and Honest Hand Soap contain Phenoxyethanol, which the
Honest blog described as “synthetically produced in a laboratory.” Honest Diapers contain the additive
Sodium Polycrylate (“SAP”). SAP is “petroleum-based,” as Honest concedes on the honestly blog.
This not only contradicts Honest’s statement that its diapers are natural, but Honest has previously
identified on Honest.com that its diapers are “100% plant-based.”

Honest also misstates the effectiveness of its “natural” products. It almost goes without saying
that reasonable consumers of natural goods expect natural goods that are also effective, so these
marketing statements are material. Honest expressly stated Honest Sunscreen is effective — “super
effective” and “highly effective,” in fact. Both of these statements appeared on Honest.com, and both
statements remain on the Honest Sunscreen product page.

As Honest has no doubt noticed, many consumers have experienced harm from using Honest
Sunscreen. Some consumers are documenting the harm they experienced, and publicly sending you
photographs that constitute evidence that Honest Sunscreen does not protect consumers from harmful
UV rays. This documentation serves as evidence that Honest Sunscreen is ineffective. Despite this
evidence, Honest has yet to redact and rectify its marketing claims. To avoid doubt, we demand
retraction, not merely surreptitious deletion. In select cases, we have reviewed evidence that your
company has deleted marketing claims from Honest.com without providing an honest account of
contradictions between marketing claims and product ingredients.

Honest’s material misrepresentations and failures to disclose violate the CLRA, as follows:

1. Honest has misrepresented Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish Soap, Honest Diapers, Honest
Multi-Surface Cleaner, and Honest Sunscreen as having characteristics, ingredients, uses, and
benefits that they do not have (Cal. Civ. Code §1770(a)(5));

2. Honest has misrepresented Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish Soap, Honest Diapers, Honest
Multi-Surface Cleaner, and Honest Sunscreen are of a particular standard, quality, or grade,
when they are of another (Cal. Civ. Code §1770(a)(7));

3. Honest advertised Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish Soap, Honest Diapers, Honest Multi-Surface
Cleaner, and Honest Sunscreen with the intent not to sell them as advertised (Cal. Civ. Code

§1770(a)(9)); and

4. Honest represented the Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish Soap, Honest Diapers, Honest Multi-
Surface Cleaner, and Honest Sunscreen were supplied in commercial transactions in accordance
with previous representations, when in fact these products did not accord with Honest’s
representations. (Cal. Civ. Code §1770(a)(16)).
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We demand that within 30 days of receiving this letter, Honest agrees to immediately and
permanently discontinue its marketing practices described above and return the monetary premium paid
by Honest consumers who purchased “natural” products that contained synthetic ingredients as well as
the entire price paid by Honest consumers who purchased Honest Sunscreen. If Honest refuses to
provide the demanded relief within 30-days, we will seek compensatory and punitive damages and any

other appropriate equitable relief.

Finally, please allow this letter to serve as an initial litigation hold, and be advised that
spoliation sanctions may be assessed against your company if, inter alia, it modifies or deletes any web
copy without first creating an exact, comprehensive copy of the visual appearance at the time of
modification or deletion, AND a copy of the corresponding HTML/CSS/Javascript code, placed into
reliable data storage, including all relevant metadata, including for any webpages or webcopy Honest
decides to change or amend as a result of the claims identified in this letter.

Very trul gﬁ'/s,
YR

/cholas A. Carlin
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7733 FORSYTH BLVD, SUITE 1675
St. Louts, MO 63105

TEL (314) 226-1015

Fax (202) 789-1813
mflannery@cuneolaw.com
www.cuneolaw.com

September 24, 2015

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Brian Lee

Chief Executive Officer

The Honest Company, Inc.

2700 Pennsylvania Ave., Ste. 1200
Santa Monica, CA 90404

Craig Gatarz

Registered Agent for Service of Process
The Honest Company, Inc.

2700 Pennsylvania Ave., Ste. 1200
Santa Monica, CA 90404

Re:

CLRA NOTICE

Dear Mr. Lee,

We represent Shane Michael. Pursuant to the California Consumer Legal Code § 1750, e
seq. (specifically, §§ 1782(a)(5). Remedies Act ("CLRA"), California Civil (7), (9) and (16), Mr.
Michael, on behalf of himself and all other similarly situated consumers in the United States,
(collectively, the "Class"), through his undersigned counsel, hereby notify you that The Honest
Company, Inc.'s ("Honest's") practices regarding SPF 30 Honest Sunscreen (the “Sunscreen”)

1
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violates the CLRA as set forth in more detail below. We demand that Honest rectify the
violations of the CLRA within 30 days of receipt of this letter.

We believe you are already aware of this issue based on consumer complaints. However,
many customers have been misled, overcharged, and otherwise suffered injury, in their purchase
of Honest Sunscreen. The facts are more fully detailed below.

L Claim Summary

This case involves unfair business practices by Defendant in the marketing and sale of its
Sunscreen.According to Defendant, Honest Sunscreen’s only active sunscreen ingredient is zinc
oxide. Honest Sunscreen originally contained 20 percent zinc oxide. Honest advertises its
Sunscreen as effective, safe, and natural, and promises that it provides “safe, effective sun
protection for the entire family,” by providing “broad spectrum (UVA and UVB) 30 SPF mineral
sunscreen—everything you need.”

However, in March 2015, Defendant reformulated Honest Sunscreen to contain only 9.3
percent zinc oxide. Despite reducing the only active ingredient in Honest Sunscreen by more
than half, Defendant continued to represent that Honest Sunscreen provides “broad spectrum
SPF 30” sun protection.

Mr. Michael purchased the Sunscreen in April-May 2015, and paid a premium for Honest
Sunscreen because it promised natural, chemical-free SPF 30 sun protection and he believed,
based on these representations, that it would be safer for his family than chemical-based
sunscreens. Mr. Michael used the Sunscreen as directed and suffered a severe sunburn, resulting
in blistering and peeling.

Honest’s conduct violates California state law, including the Consumers Legal Remedies
Act, Calif. Civil Code § 1750, ef seq. (the “CLRA™), California’s False Advertising Law,
California Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, California Commercial Code § 2313, California
Commercial Code § 2314, Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 1.5
U.S.C. §§ 45(a) & 52.12. In particular, Honest’s conduct violates, among other potentially
applicable provisions, California Civil Code § 1770(a):

(5)  representing goods or services have sponsorship, approval, characteristics,
ingredients, uses, benefits, or quantities which they do not have or that a person

2
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has a sponsorship, approval, status, affiliation, or connection which he or she does
not have;

(7) representing goods or services are of a particular standard, quality, or
grade, or that goods are of a particular style or model, if they are of another;

9) advertising goods or services with intent to not sell them as advertised;

(14) representing that a transaction confers or involves rights, remedies or
obligations which it does not have or involve or which are prohibited by law;
[and,]

(16) representing the subject of a transaction has been supplied in accordance
with a previous representation when it has not.

11. Remedy for Unlawful Activity

On behalf of Plaintiff and all other similarly affected persons, we request Honest’s cease
such conduct and undertake the following actions to resolve the issues raised by this letter. To
satisfy all applicable statutory and common law provisions, whether in tort or in contract, we
request Honest’s commit to undertake all of the following:

1. Identify all affected customers in addition to Plaintiff;

2 Advise all such persons of the right upon request to a full, complete and
timely refund of the purchase price of any falsely advertised products,
including interest; and,

3 Reimbursement of any associated expenditures, interest on all such sums,
costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred.

While Plaintiff reserves the right to file a claim arising out of these issues before this
date, Honest;s failure to comply with this request within thirty (30) days from the date of this
letter may subject Honest to additional damages, restitution and injunctive relief claims under
relevant statutory law. The additional relief sought may include $1.000 per person as provided
under Civil Code § 1782, exemplary damages, plus any other relief as may be appropriate.

Please note an individual offer will not avoid potential suit or liability, even if accepted
individually by Plaintiff. California law prohibits defendants from “picking off the

3
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representative plaintiff” because any proffered relief “must be granted to the entire class.”
Watkins v. Wachovia Corp., 172 Cal.App.4th 1576, 1590 n.15 (2009); see also Kagan v.
Gibraltar Sav. & Loan Ass’'n, 35 Cal.3d 582, 593 (1984). Thus, to avoid unnecessary litigation,
it is in all parties’ interests for Honest to take immediate action to address this problem.

This notice also serves as a demand to cure breaches of express and implied warranties, and
to comply with all agreements and covenants of good faith and fair dealing created by Honest’s
warranties, advertisements, offers and agreements or as established by law. The requested relief
applies to all such claims to the extent required by California or other applicable law.

III. Evidence Preservation

Plaintiff hereby places Honest on notice to immediately preserve, and not to destroy, any
evidence, documents or materials, including all electronic or electronically stored information,
that may be relevant (or lead to the discovery of relevant or admissible evidence) concerning the
claims summarized above. Relevant evidence, created in electronic form subsequent to the date
of delivery of this letter, should also be retained and not destroyed. Plaintiff requests that Honest
take whatever steps are appropriate to preserve such evidence.

Please have your legal counsel contact us with any questions or response.

Very truly yours,

cc: Plaintiffs’ Counsel
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Sunscreen—Defendant deseribes-itsproducts-includingINTRODUCTION

1. Honest isn’t. From at least September 20, 2012 through the present

(the “Class Period), The Honest Company, Inc. (“Defendant” or “Honest™)

deceptively and misleadingly labeled, advertised and marketed its products,

including the following five Honest products: Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish

Soap, Honest Diapers, and Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner (collectively the

“Natural Products”) and Honest Sunscreen (together with the Natural Products, the

“Honest Products™) as both natural and effective, when in fact, the Natural

Products contain non-natural ingredients, and Honest Sunscreen is ineffective.
2. Plaintiffs Jonathan D. Rubin, Shane Michael, Stavroula Da Silva,

Dreama Hembree, and Ethel Lung bring this class action lawsuit against

Defendant, each individually and on behalf of two nationwide classes (the “Honest

Natural Products Class” and the “Honest Sunscreen Class”) that include other

similarly situated purchasers of the Honest Products who experienced the same or

substantially similar harm as a result of Defendant’s false advertising.

3. Defendant’s conduct harms consumers by inducing them to purchase

and consume the Honest Products on the false premise that the products are

natural and effective and by implicitly promising that the products are

manufactured, marketed and sold “honestly.”
4. Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the Honest Natural Products Class

paid a premium for certain Natural Products over comparable products, based on

Defendant’s representations that the Natural Products were natural. Instead of

receiving products that were natural, Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the Honest

Natural Products Class received products that, contrary to Defendant’s

representations, contained synthetic, non-natural ingredients.

CLASS ACTION-COMPLAINT ——1  ,ooc,
FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT — Michael v. The Honest
Company, Inc., 2:15-cv-07059-JAK (AGRXx)




Case 2:

EREEREBEBREEERNEGTRELESL ©o v o & 0 m w

I

5-cv-07059-JAK-AGR Document 36-3 Filed 01/08/16 Page 4 of 78 Page ID #:313

2—Plaintiffs Michael, Hembree, and Lung, and the Honest Sunscreen as

1.5,  Plaintiffpurchased-Honest Sunscreen-intate-Aprilorearly-May-2015-and;

altheugh-hebased in part on Defendant’s representations that it was effective.

Plaintiffs Michael and Hembree used the product as directed; and suffered a-severe

sunbura-severe sunburns. Plaintiff Lung used the product as directed on her

children, who experienced severe sunburns. Numerous customer complaints and

negative product reviews indicate Rlaintiff’sexperiencePlaintiffs’ experiences with

Honest Sunscreen waswere not unique.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2:6.  FhisThe Court has eriginaljurisdictionpursuantto-28-4-S-C-§1332(d}11)
because-there-are-one-hundred-ormerepersens-whose-SUbject matter jurisdiction over
the individual and class claims are-being-breughtasserted herein-Plaintifiis-a-citizen-ofa

different state thanDefendant-and-the-overall pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332, as

amended in 2005 by the Class Action Fairness Act, because: (A) the amount in

controversy in this class action exceeds $5,000,000-00, exclusive of interests,

COStS, interest-and attorneys’ fees—Fheindividualclaims-can-be-triedjointlyin; and (B) a
CLASS ACTION-COMPLAINT —1 o
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substantial number of the members of the proposed class are citizens of a state

different from that they-invelvecommen-guestions-of factandtaw0f Defendant. In
addition, Plaintiffs Rubin, Michael, Da Silva, Hembree, and Lung are citizens of

states different from that of Defendant, a Delaware Corporation.

3.7. _FhisThe Court has personal jurisdiction over the-Defendantbecauseit

Defendant. Honest maintains headquarters in Santa Monica, California and

conducts substantial and continuous business inthroughout the State of California.

4.8. _Venue is proper in-thisdistricepursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) ard&
(b)(2) because a substantial part of the events or omissions thatgivegiving rise to

the elaimsclaim occurred in califerniaand-this District, and because Defendant
conducts a substantial part of its business in this District.
PARTIES

9. Plaintiff Jonathan D. Rubin is a resident of Los Angeles, California

and an individual consumer. During the Natural Products Class Period, Mr. Rubin

purchased Honest brand hand soap (“Honest Hand Soap’) and Honest brand dish

soap (‘“Honest Dish Soap™) from the supermarket chain Gelson’s Markets in Los

Angeles, California. As with all members of the Honest Natural Products Class,

Mr. Rubin paid a premium for these Natural Products based upon the

representation that the Natural Products are natural, in excess of the price for

comparable products not purporting to be natural.
5 Plaintiff Shane Michael is a resident of West Des Moines, lowa-

5:10. Plaintiffpurchased-Honest- and an individual consumer. During the

Sunscreen atClass Period, Plaintiff Michael purchased Honest Sunscreen from the

supermarket chain Costco Wholesale in West Des Moines, lowa-intate-Apriloreatrly

May-2015.. Plaintiff Michael paid a premium for Honest Sunscreen because
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iDefendant promised natural, chemical-free SPF 30 sun protection and he
believed, based on these representations, that it would be safer for his family than

chemical-based sunscreens.

11. Plaintiff Stavroula Da Silva is a resident of Miramar, Florida, and an

individual consumer. During the Natural Products Class Period, Plaintiff Da Silva

purchased Honest Hand Soap and Honest Dish Soap from Target in Florida. As

with all members of the Honest Natural Products Class, Ms. Da Silva paid a

premium for these Natural Products based upon the representation that the Natural

Products are natural, in excess of the price for comparable products not purporting

to be natural.

12. Plaintiff Dreama Hembree is a resident of Burlington, Kansas and an

individual consumer. During the Sunscreen Class Period, Ms. Hembree purchased

Honest Sunscreen from the supermarket chain Costco Wholesale in Burlington,

Kansas. Ms. Hembree paid for the Honest Sunscreen because she believed the

sunscreen would effectively protect her family from exposure to UV rays, and

because Defendant promised natural, chemical-free SPF 30 sun protection.

13. Plaintiff Ethel Lung is a resident of Burbank, California and an

individual consumer. During the Sunscreen Class Period, Ms. Lung purchased

Honest Sunscreen from the supermarket chain Costco Wholesale in Burbank,

California. Ms. Lung paid for the Honest Sunscreen because she believed the

sunscreen would effectively protect her family from exposure to UV rays.

6:14. Defendant The Honest Company, Inc. is a Delaware corporation with

its-headguarters-and-principalplaceof businessheadquartered in Santa Monica,
California. The company markets its products online through the website
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<https://www.honest.com> (“Honest.com”) and operates an active storefront on

Amazon.com selling the Honest Products. Defendant maintains supply chain

control over the manufacture of the Honest Products, operates as an online retailer,

and distributes the Honest Products, business-to-business, to major retail outlets

throughout the U.S. and Canada.

DEFENBANTSMHISREPRESENTATHONS REGARBING HONEST
SUNSCREEN

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Defendant’s Nationwide Distribution

15. California has significant contacts to the class claims asserted in the

Complaint.
16. On information and belief, Defendant develeps,-manufactures,markets;
and-has designed, controlled, and overseen a national production and distribution

network from the company’s headquarters in California.

17. According to the company’s public statements, Defendant contracts

with third-party manufacturing and supplier facilities to produce and distribute the

Honest Products. On information and belief, Defendant controls its entire supply

chain from its company headquarters in California.

18. Defendant sells the Honest Products online via Honest.com, a direct-

to-consumer preducts-e-commerce website. On information and belief, Defendant

controls its entire e-commerce operation from its company headquarters in

California.

19. Defendant actively generates traffic to its website through promotions

on Facebook.com and Twitter.com, on information and belief, operated from the

company’s headquarters in California.

CEASSACHON-COMPLEAINT—1 .0
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20. Defendant uploads Honest Product videos on its YouTube account,

on information and belief, operated from the company’s headquarters in

California.

21. Defendant also sells the Honest Products through a popular online

storefront in the Amazon.com marketplace. On information and belief, Honest

controls its Amazon storefront from its company headquarters in California.

22. Defendant distributes the Honest Products, business-to-business, for

purchase in big box chain retail locations nationwide, including HenestSunsereen:*
Defendantstatesits- T arget, Costco Wholesale Corporation, Whole Foods Market,

Inc., Gelson’s Markets, and Buy Buy Baby, Inc., across the United States. On

information and belief, Defendant controls national distribution of the Honest

Products from its company headquarters in California.

Defendant’s Long-Term Advertising Campaign

23. Defendant created, designed, and since at least 2012, carried out a

long-term, national advertising campaign from the company’s California

headquarters.

24. Defendant’s advertising campaign has been sufficiently lengthy in

duration, and widespread in dissemination, such that it would be unrealistic to

require the plaintiff to plead relying upon each advertised misrepresentation.

25. Defendant’s advertising campaign has been widespread, continuous,

and contained in various media, labels, and point-of-sale displays.

26. Defendant’s advertising campaign has included and includes

traditional media and new media, such as print circulars, television

gl:’ ‘SS"GIIQIJQQI"” |:1 ‘”‘II + 468359 '
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advertisements, television appearances, social media promotions, sales copy on its

own website, and sales copy on third party marketplace websites.

27. Defendant has engaged in this long-term advertising campaign to

convince potential customers, first, that the company’s advertising representations

should be taken literally, because those claims are “honest,” and second, that the

company’s products are literally “natural” and “effective.”

28. Representative samples of the campaign are contained herein.

Defendant’s Overarching Brand Advertising

29. As part of the long term advertising campaign, Defendant at all times

has advertised, and continues to advertise, itself as a consumer products company

that is centrally defined by selling natural, effective products and publishing

honest advertising claims.

30. As a representative example, Defendant advertises its company as “Natural, Safe,

Beautiful, Effective,” on its own website, including in the following screenshot from Honest-Sunsereen

are-manufactured-with-a-feeus.com captured on “guatity;August 14, 2015:

Join the Honest Company

Natural - Safe - Beautiful - Effective
Products for Baby, Family & Home
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31. As another representative example, on Auqust 18, 2015, Defendant’s

celebrity co-founder Jessica Alba and CEO Brian Lee appeared jointly, in their

capacities as executive officers for Defendant, for a company feature on CNN

Money that broadcast the same advertising representations, as follows:

32.  Defendant advertises the company’s product irnevations-health-& safety;
and-affordability;”and-lines, in general, as “effective” and “safe” in offline point-of-
sale locations as well, including airport kiosks, as demonstrated by the following

picture from July 2015:

Jessica Alba cashing in on Honest
Company
OOOQQQQ -
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32.  As part of the long term advertising campaign, Defendant includes its

company’s name, in lower case, on its product labels, specifically as part of each

of the product names: “honest hand soap,” “honest dish soap,” “honest diapers,”

“honest multi-surface cleaner,” and “honest sunscreen.”

33.  As part of its advertising campaign, Defendant further amplifies its

representations with the “honestly FREE quarantee,” which is displayed on

product labels and displayed at Honest.com, Defendant’s Amazon storefront, and

EREERBBREEERNEGTRELESL ©oo v o s 0mw

partner websites including Target.com.
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34. The “honestly FREE guarantee” states: “Providing clear, credible,

transparent information. No smoke and mirrors. No confusion.”

7-35. Defendant further describes its-products-as“net-only-effective but
ble22itself, its

advertising, and its numerous product lines as follows on Honest.com:

“Free from fraud or deception, truthful — We believe in transparency and

that applies to everything — from what we put into our products and how
they are made to our internal operations and how we do things.
“Genuine, real — The Honest Company was started by parents for
parents. We are real tangible people, parents that understand what
families need and we want to deliver on that — not some big corporation
with no social consciousness that only cares about making a profit.
“Respectable, praiseworthy — We are people with integrity and we
intend on not only doing things right, but also going above and beyond
to earn your respect and loyalty — making you so delighted you want
to shout it from a rooftop (or tweet it from your iPhone).

“Humble — We know no one can be absolutely perfect and a part of our
commitment to honesty means we'll admit our flaws. It's pretty scary,
but we think it's a good way to keep us focused on constant

improvement:2.”

36. Defendant’s Chief Creative Officer and celebrity co-founder Jessica

Alba serves as the public face of the company.

Company, Inc., 2:15-cv-07059-JAK (AGRX)
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37. To further advertise the company image as selling natural products,

Ms. Alba has crafted public statements about Defendant made-to convince the

public that the Defendant is leading a movement to protect consumers from

products that contain chemicals.

38. Ms. Alba’s celebrity status ensures the company’s claims are reported

by numerous media outlets.

39. Inthis way, Ms. Alba has coordinated her media appearances with

Defendant’s long-term advertising campaign.
40. OnJune 18, 2015, Ms. Alba and The Honest Company, Inc.’s COO

Christopher Gavigan appeared jointly in their capacities as Defendant’s co-

founders to petition federal officials to strengthen requlations against consumer

products containing toxic chemicals, and Ms. Alba and Mr. Gavigan coordinated

this appearance with Defendant’s extensive marketing campaign, including as

follows:

a. Ms. Alba appeared in the hallway of a Congressional office

building, before a professional media crew, and stated: “[A]s a

business owner, I’'m proof of concept that you can do business

right—right by humans, right by the planet —and you can be very

successful and grow very quickly.”

b. Mr. Gavigan tweeted the following specificstatement with a picture

of the Washington Monument: “Here in D.C. to convince

lawmakers to join @honest to protect citizens. #chemical

#reform.”

41. Defendant’s representations that advertise the company as “honest,”

“natural,” and “effective,” extending to all of its product lines, are available to

consumers via numerous online, offline, and point-of-sale platforms, extending to
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all or substantially all potential and actual customers that fall within the class

definitions set forth in this Complaint.

42. By advertising the company as “honest” and as “natural’” and

“effective,” Defendant has extended its overarching advertising claims to each

individual product line, such that Defendant has cultivated an image in the minds

of consumers that would lead a reasonable consumer to conclude that Defendant’s

product lines are all “natural” and “effective.”

Defendant’s Product Advertising: Natural

43. Defendant sells the Natural Products to consumers at a ten to twenty

percent premium, based on its advertising representations that they are “natural.”

44. Since at least September 20, 2012 and up to the filing of this lawsuit,

Defendant has disseminated advertising statements to the public, rising to the level

of a long-term advertising campaign that falsely claims the Natural Products are

“natural.”

45. Defendant amplifies its representations that the Natural Products are

“natural” with supplemental representations, including that the Natural Products

do not contain harsh chemicals, are safe, are non-toxic, and are plant-based.

Honest Hand Soap

46. Honest Hand Soap product packaging stated and continues to state

that the Honest Hand Soap is “natural.”
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47.
Auqust 14, 2015, displaying Honest Hand Soap product packaqging:

The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on

*4.95

Quantity: - 1

Scent:

Select Scent:

7~ honest
- hand soap

honest

- honest
<> hand soap #

7

L)
%
4

_____

natural » non-toxic ~  natural » non-toxic

mlu;::,-i:r;ﬁ:;on: enriching olri enriching ; [
/ .—‘, ) OR
mt:rjtr."a‘nn ((-:Jlongr"ass "l‘:' f(;‘.feﬂ(&r ; E—
48. Honest.com described and continues to describe Honest Hand Soap

as “non-toxic,” and containing “NO harsh chemicals (ever!),” and in so doing, has

amplified its representation that Honest Hand Soap is natural.
49,
August 14, 2015, describing Honest Hand Soap as “Natural’:

The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on

about

¢ Rich and creamy lather infused with botanicals and essential oils to clean and soften hands

= Great for the whole family - from sticky, little fingers to Dad's soiled gardening hands and everything in between

» Soft lather gently removes dirt and grime and easily rinses away without drying skin - leaving behind nothing but pure, clean delight!
* pH balanced to leave skin soft and hydrated

¢ Hypoallergenic and ultra pure for sensitive skin

e Available in 3 delightful scents!

¢ NO harsh chemicals (ever!)

e Natural « Hypoallergenic « Non-Toxic » Biodegradable « pH Balanced

Guarantee
50. On information and belief, these website statements, and all other

statements accessible on Defendant’s Honest website in August of 2015 that are

made without: phthalates, SLS, DEA, triclosan, synthetic fragrances, glycols, dyes, phosphates, 1,4-dioxane,

formaldehyde, or most common allergens

excerpted in this Complaint, were available online during the duration of the
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Natural Products Class Period, with the exception of website statements about

Honest Sunscreen.

51. By consistently and systematically labeling and advertising Honest

Hand Soap as (A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products

Class Period, Defendant intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Hand

Soap would be exposed to these advertising claims and take them literally.

Honest Dish Soap

52. Honest Dish Soap’s product webpage on Target.com states that the

Honest Dish Soap is “Natural.”

53. The product description on Target.com also described and continues

to describe Honest Dish Soap as “non-toxic” and containing “no harsh chemicals

(ever!),” and in so doing, has amplified Defendant’s representation that Honest

Dish Soap is natural.

54. The following excerpted screenshots appeared on Target.com on

Auqust 14, 2015, displaying Honest Dish Soap product packaging:

No harsh chemicals (ever!). Natural, non-toxic,
biodegradable, pH balanced, ultra-concentrated, and
Honestly Free of SLS, SLES, phthalates, synthetic
fragrances, glycols, enzymes, dyes, phosphates, 1,4-
dioxane, chlorine, DEA, formaldehyde, and caustics.

Product Results: Removes Residue, Removes Grease,
Used for Cleaning, Cleaner
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55. Target.com includes a disclaimer stating this description “comes from

the product manufacturers.”

M= uad>eu vicainiy

A

non-toxic  ultra-concentrated + pH balanced
biodegradable - extra suds

16 fl. oz

56.  Honest Dish Soap product packaging stated and continues to state

“plant-based” and “non-toxic,” and in so doing, has amplified its representation

that Honest Dish Soap is natural.

57. The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on

Auqust 14, 2015, displaying Honest Dish Soap product packaging:

*3.95

Quantity: @ 1O

Scent

Select Scent -

OR

SAVE UP TO 35%
WHEN YOU

Bundle & Save

= PRODUCTS OF ONLY
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58. Honest Dish Soap’s product webpage on Honest.com stated and

continues to state that Honest Dish Soap has a “natural” formula; is “non-toxic’:

and contains “no harsh chemicals (ever!)”: and in so doing, has further amplified

its representation that Honest Dish Soap is natural.

59. The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on
Auqust 14, 2015, describing Honest Dish Soap:

about
» Effective grease and dish cleaning power In a natural, ultra versatile formula
» Easily penetrates foods, milk and formula residues, and general household messes

» Virtually no streaking, spotting, or residue
d ingredients ensure a bright luster, easy rinsing and delightful shine

ts and pans, glasses, serveware, baby bottles, toys, and more!

eneral all-purpose soap for household chores — use on floor
r g where a simple soap is needed

s Ultra-concentrated formula with EXTRA suds

» Available in 3 delightful scents

» No harsh chemicals (ever!)

» Non-Toxic - Ultra-Concentrated - pH Balanced - Biodegradable - Extra Suds

Honestly Free made without: SLS, SLES, phtt
Guarantee chlorine, DEA, formaldehyde,

60. By consistently and systematically advertising the Honest Dish Soap

as (A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products Class Period,

Defendant intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Dish Soap would be

exposed to these advertising representations, and would take them literally.

Honest Diapers

61. Honest.com states that Honest Diapers are “natural.”

62. The following excerpted screenshots appeared on Honest.com on

August 26, 2015, in the “Diapering” section of the website:
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OUR PHILOSOPHY

|
effective, eco-friendly, utterly adorable.

jon't have to be boring. And they absolutely shouldn't be un-safe. Enjoy the worry-free

that are
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63. The Honest.com “Diapering” section provides the following website

“meta-tag” description to search engine crawlers: “<meta content="Buy safe,

natural baby products and eco-friendly disposable diapers. The Honest Company

provides bath, skin care and green cleaning products." name="description" />.

64. As aresult of this meta-tag, the representation that Honest Diapers

are “natural” appears verbatim in Google search results for Honest Diapering.

65. The following excerpted screenshot is a Google search conducted for

“Honest Diapering” on August 26, 2015:
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Web Videos Shopping Images News Maore Search tools

About 1,520,000 results (0.38 seconds)

Did you mean: Honest Diapers

Shop for Honest Diapering on Google Sponsored ®
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Honest Diapers, Honest Diapers, Honest Diapers  Infant The Toddler The
Guitars, Size N Bumble Bees... & Wipes Bundle Honest Comp... Honest Comp...
$13.95 $13.95 $79.95 $13.95 $12.99
Honest.com Honest.com Honest.com MNordstrom MNordstrom

* % 4 e (3)

Honest.com - Official Honest® Diapers

www honest.com/Try-Diapers ~
Your Baby Will Love Honest Diapers. Ultra Absorbent, Extra Soft & Cutel
Honestly Free Guarantee - Save up to 40% - Free Shipping over $50

Diapers Try Us Today
Ultra absorbent and eco-friendly. Sample Our Favorite ltems Today!
Choose one of our cute designs! Discover all the good stuff.

Bundle & Save Up To 40% Organic Baby Powder
Honest products conveniently Certified organic formula to keep
delivered each month. Mix & match! skin feeling dry & comfortable.

Diapers - The Honest Company
https:/iwww_honest.com/baby/honest-diapers ~

$13.95 - In stock

Buy natural, premium and eco-friendly disposable baby diapers from The Honest
Company. Gentle, safe, and non-irritating for the most sensitive skin.

Page ID

&

The Honest Diapers’ product webpage on Honest.com states that

Honest Diapers are “plant-based” and “safe” and contain “NO HARSH

CHEMICALS (EVER),” and in so doing, has amplified its representation that

Honest Diapers are “natural.”
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67. The following excerpted screenshot appeared on Honest.com on

Auqust 25, 2015, describing Honest Diapers:

about » Plant-based (PLA) inner and outer layers — gentle on your baby's bottom

* Super absorbent core with fluff pulp harvested from certified sustainably managed forests — NO chlorine ,,‘-@15%&
processing or harsh chemical bleaches v \.'; |

* Naturally derived odor inhibitors from citrus and chlorophyll ‘_: 7

« Bio-based, gluten free wheat/corn blend in super absorbent core — less sodium polyacrylate i’\_’ﬂ}

* Simply pure — no fragrances, lotions, or latex

* Yes, diapers can be fun too! Cute, stylish designs fo and boys — updated seasonally! Never miss out

« Comfy-stretch side panels and soft, refastenable tabs f ct fit and wigglability!
= Securely fitting moisture barrier cuffs help prevent leakage and blowouts

« Gentle, safe, and non-irritating for sensitive skin

*MADE WITH NATURALLY DERIVED, PLANT-BASED & SUSTAINABLE MATERIALS

size &

i comfy-stretch waistband
Ci)l.la ntity ) superior absorbency
chart

_ natural
odor-blockers
bio-based B
sustainably —
harvested core

advanced
leak protection ~— ultra soft,
~ plant-based

materials

68. The Honest Diapers’ product page on Honest.com previously stated

that Honest Diapers were “100%....plant-based,” and in so doing, further amplified

its representations that Honest Diapers are natural.

69. The following excerpted screenshot appeared on the Internet

Archive’s Wayback Machine on August 26, 2015, accessed by inserting the

Honest.com Diaper Bundle webpage, and selecting January 21, 2013:

A new diaper for a new generation!
100% non-toxic. chlorine-free. sustainable. and plant-based materials — ensuring vour baby 1s safe and NOT exposed to any harsh or svnthetic chemicals (ever!)

* Diapers

e Wipes

* Patterns

® Details & Ingredients

EREEREBEBREEERNEGTRELESL ©o v o & 0 m w
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70. By consistently and systematically advertising the Honest Diapers as

(A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products Class Period,

Defendant intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Diapers would be

exposed to these advertising representations and would take them literally.

Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner

71. Honest.com states that Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner is “natural.”

72. The Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner’s product webpage on Honest.com

provides the following website “meta-taq’” description to search engine crawlers:

<meta content="Shop The Honest Company for natural all-purpose cleaner. With

no harsh chemicals, our baby-safe, non-toxic multi-surface cleaner conquers dirt

and grime." name="description" />.

73. As aresult of this meta-tag, the representation that Honest Multi-

Surface Cleaner is “natural” appears verbatim in Google search results for Honest

Multi-Surface Cleaner.

74. The following excerpted screenshot is a Google search conducted for

“Multi-Surface Cleaner — The Honest Company” on Auqust 26, 2015:

Go Sle Multi-Surface Cleaner - The Honest Company

o

Web

The Honest Company - honest.com

www honestcom/ ~

Shop All Honest® Products Jessica Alba
Try 3 Discovery Kits Gifts that Delight

Multi Surface Cleaner - Pledge.com
www pledge. com/MultiSurface *
15 dededeok ige com
Pledge® Antibacte tsinfects & Cleans Virtually Any Hard Surface
FAQS - Pledged Surface - Walch The Video - Explore Our Products

Multi-Surface Cleaner - The Honest Company
hitps /'www honest com/cleaning/honest-surface-cleaner ~

Shop The Honest Company for natural all-purpose cleaner. With no harsh chemicals
our baby-safe, non-toxic multi-surface cleaner conquers dirt and grime
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75. The Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner product webpage on Honest.com

states that Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner is “naturally fresh,” and “Non-Toxic,”
and that it contains “NO HARSH CHEMICALS (EVER),” and “Repels dust

naturally.” Each of these statements has amplified Defendant’s representation that

Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner is natural.

76. The following excerpted screenshots appeared on Honest.com on
August 25, 2015:

a ho[ 1t « A naturally fresh way to safely clean and remove dirt & buildup fron
home

u)

B #a )2
‘ \_" 2}

= Effectively penetrate and emulsify dirl, grease, oil, grime and tiny fingerprints
« Only the fresh smell of grapefruit essential oil, and not h

* Repels dust naturally

* No toxic residue left behind (unlike other

« Great for cleaning: kitchen ¢

« No harsh chemicals (ever!)
» Non-Texic - Biodegradable - pH Balanced

@Hnnesﬂyﬁee sde without: ammonia, SLS, SLES, fragrance veol, dyes, phosphates, 1.4-dioxane, chlorine, bl 1. DEA, formaldehyde, triclosan, or causti
Guarantee

77. By consistently and systematically advertising the Honest Multi-

Surface Cleaner as (A) “natural” and (B) “honest” throughout the Natural Products

Class Period, Honest intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Multi-Surface

Cleaner would be exposed to these advertising representations, and would take

them literally.

Honest Sunscreen-among-others;
78. Honest Sunscreen originally contained 20 percent zinc oxide, the only

active ingredient. In March 2015, Defendant reformulated Honest Sunscreen to

contain only 9.3 percent zinc oxide, but continued to advertise Honest Sunscreen

as “effective.”
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79. At some point in time during or slightly after March 2015, Defendant

labeled Honest Sunscreen as providing (A) “broad-spectrum mineral-based

protection” or (B) “natural mineral based sun protection.”

80. Defendant amplified these representations by labeling Honest

Sunscreen with the phrase “broad spectrum SPF 30.”

81. Honest.com further amplified these representations by describing

Honest Sunscreen as “highly effective,” “super effective,” and “safe.”

82. These excerpted screenshots appeared on Honest.com on Auqust 14,
2015:

t g I ith non-toxic, non-nan ng su 1 Sup
n er effe e — pr C e be i spe prot L m
about
* Naturally derived, unscented, broad-spectrum (UVA and UVB) SPF mineral sunscreen - everything you need, nothing you don't
« Easy to apply, non-greasy, non-whitening (non-nano!) zinc oxide sunscreen provides safe, effective sun protection for the entire family

* Zinc oxide is the ONLY active sunscreen ingredient - NO synthetic chemical sunscreens
» Water resistant - tested effective for up to 80 minutes
e Shake well before use!

* Hypoallergenic - Non-Nano - Mineral-Based - Biodegradable - Reef-Friendly - Water Resistant (80 minutes) - pH Balanced

@ Honestly Free made without: PABA, oxybenzone, gluten, parabens, phthalates, fragrances, dyes, or synthetic chemica
Guarantee SUNSCIeeNS

sunscreern Spir su

"13.95

A4

BROAD SPECTRUM

CEASSACHON-COMPLEAINT—1 .0

FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT — Michael v. The Honest
Company, Inc., 2:15-cv-07059-JAK (AGRXx)




Case|]

EREERBBREEERNEGTRELESL ©oo v o s 0mw

P:15-cv-07059-JAK-AGR Document 36-3 Filed 01/08/16 Page 25 of 78 Page ID

#:334

83. By consistently and systematically labeling and advertising Honest

Sunscreen as (A) providing “broad-spectrum mineral-based protection”: (B)

providing “natural mineral based sun protection’; (C) “effective”: (D) “highly

effective,” (E) “super effective;” (F) “safe,” and/or (G) providing “broad spectrum
SPF 30” and (H) “honest” throughout the Sunscreen Class Period, Defendant

intended that all consumers purchasing Honest Sunscreen would be exposed to

these advertising representations and take them literally.

8.84. Defendant’s representations regarding Honest Sunsereen:*Sunscreen’s

sun protection characteristics are not mere puffery, including because sun

protection is the product’s express purpose and thus any consumer would

necessarily rely on such representations in deciding to purchase the product.

e Easy to apply, non-greasy, non-whitening (non-nano!) zinc oxide sunscreen provides

» Water resistant - tested effectiv I up 1o 4
* Hypoallergenic « Non-Nano « Mineral-Based + Blodegradable « Reef-Frlendly « Water
Reslstant (40 minutes) - pH Balanced - Naturally Non-Toxlc

Untrue, Misleading, and/or Deceptive Claims

Natural Goods Advertising

85. Defendant’s representations in advertisements and labels are

misleading, deceptive, and/or untrue.

86. Defendant falsely represented and continues to represent, expressly

and by implication, that the Natural Products are natural.

87. “Natural” in the context of Defendant’s products means each product

contains no artificial ingredients.
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88. The representation that a product is natural is material to a reasonable

consumer.

Synthetic Ingredients Are Not Natural

89. Honest Natural Products that Defendant advertised and/or labeled as

“natural” contain non-natural ingredients.

90. Contrary to Defendant’s representations in advertisements and labels,

including in product descriptions on Honest.com and Target.com, the Honest

Natural Products contain non-natural ingredients as follows:

a. Honest Dish Soap

1. Methvlisothiazolinone- a synthetic preservative.

il. Cocamidopropyl Betaine- a synthetic surfactant.

. Phenoxyethanol- a synthetic preservative.

b. Honest Hand Soap

1. Phenoxyethanol- see above.

C. Honest Multi-Surface Cleaner

1. Methylisothiazolinone- see above.

d. Honest Diapers

I Sodium Polycrylate- a petrochemical-based additive.

91. Synthetic ingredients are artificial, not natural.

92. The Environmental Working Group rates each of these ingredients as

exceeding the organization’s “low hazard” threshold, according to the following

ratings on the organization’s informational website:
(@)  Methylisothiazolinone - EWG Rating: 7 out of 9 — “High
Hazard.”
(b) Cocamidopropyl Betaine - EWG Rating: 4 out of 9 —

“Moderate Hazard.”
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(c)  Phenoxyethanol - EWG Rating: 4 out of 9 — “Moderate

(d)  Sodium Polycrylate - EWG Rating: 3 out of 9 — “Moderate

93. Defendant’s own statements on the “honestly blog” concede that

these ingredients are not natural.

94. Defendant has expressly criticized its competitors for using

“preservatives (and ingredients) with synthetic fragrances,” including

“Methylisothiazolinone.”

95. Defendant stated on the “honestly blog” that Cocamidopropy! Betaine

“isn’t found in nature,” adding the statement “but that’s the beauty and power of

chemistry!”
96. Defendant stated on the “honestly blog” that the ingredient

Phenoxyethanol is “synthetically produced in a laboratory.”

97. Defendant indicated on the “honestly blog” that the ingredient

Sodium Polycrylate is “petroleum-based.” This statement also contradicts

Defendant’s prior advertising representation that Honest Diapers are 100% plant-

based.

98. As indicated by the statements above, Defendant knowingly

advertises and or labels the Natural Products as natural despite knowing the

Natural Products contain synthetic, non-natural ingredients.

99. Plaintiffs would all consider purchasing Honest Natural Products in

the future if Defendant ceases selling misrepresented products as alleged in this

Complaint.
100. By claiming Natural Products that contain synthetic ingredients are

natural, Defendant knowingly deceived and misled reasonable consumers and

EREEREBEBREEERNEGTRELESL ©o v o & 0 m w
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untrue and would mislead consumers, or which by the exercise of reasonable care

Defendant should have known were untrue and would mislead consumers.

Sunscreen Advertising

101. Defendant falsely represented in advertising and labeling, and

continues to so represent, expressly and by necessary implication, that Honest

Sunscreen is effective, when Defendant knew the only active ingredient in Honest

Sunscreen had been reduced by more than half in March 2015.

9:102.According to Defendant, “Zinc oxide is the ONLY active sunscreen
ingredient” in Honest Sunscreen.®

16.103. Honest Sunscreen originally contained 20 percent zinc oxide.®

EREEREBEBREEERNEGTRELESL ©o v o & 0 m w
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11.104. As of March 15, 2015, Defendant’s website stated Honest
Sunscreen’s zinc oxide content was 20 percent and the Drug Facts on the back of
Honest Sunscreen’s bottle stated “Active Ingredient: Zinc Oxide 20%”:7

sunscreen
lotion

broad spectrum
mineral-bated profection

L LN

.................... Sunscreen

Uses * Helps prevent sunburn « If used as
directed with other sun protection measures (see
Directions), decreases tﬂe nisk of skin cancer and
early skin aging caused by the sun

Wamings For external use only
Do not use on damaged or brokenskin______
Whan icina thic nrndict koon ot of aves nnse

7GE,Aé‘,%—AG—T—lQN—GGMLP—I:A—I—I>~I—'I'——1
Aesest

e ) i-..‘.ju(_\H oyl vI0Z
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details & 3.0 0z
. d t Broad Spectrum SPF 30
Ingre ients Water Resistant (40 mins)

ACTIVE INGREDIENT:

Non-Nano Zinc Oxide 20%

INACTIVE INGREDIENTS

Hellanthus Annuus (Sunflower) Seed Oll, Beeswax®, Caprylic/Capric Triglyceride, Polyhydroxystearic
Acid, Calendula Officinalls Flower Extract®, Chamomilla Recutita (Matricarla) Flower Extract®, Olea Europaea (Ollve)
Fruit OI°, Triethoxycaprylylsilane, Simmondsia Chinensis (Jojoba) Seed OIlI*, Butyrospermum Parkil (Shea) Butter®

*Certified Organic Ingredient

M [ mad e o b ] (o froman el
2] W1 ﬁp#lup.u‘ o i TV
'l #Ld e
H-d-lh‘i ||P|Al..d"|

sunscreen ."f. BT
lotion |

Brtad spectrum
minerl-bated prokection

- b ﬂll-rl q“II\- Frum|
i L] o
A
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HE ne b X

fyd
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Active Ingredient

Non-Nano Zinc Dxide 20% .........ccooreeen Sunscreen
Uses = Helps prevent sunburn * If used as
directed with other sun protection measures (see B
Directions), decreases the risk of skin cancer and
early skin aging caused by the sun

Wamings For external use only
Do not use on damaged or broken skin -
Whan icinn this nendict koon oot of pPves. nnse
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S [ENUBYD 213 LIUAS B
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12.105. However, sometime later in March 2015, Defendant quietly
reformulated Honest Sunscreen to contain only 9.3 percent zinc oxide. & (In
comparison, other sunscreens typically contain between 18 and 25 percent zinc
oxide-%.)

13:106. As of August 12, 2015, Defendant’s website stated Honest
Sunscreen’s zinc oxide content was 9.3 percent and the Drug Facts on the back of

Honest Sunscreen’s bottle stated “Active Ingredient: Zinc Oxide 9.3%”:*

Company, Inc., 2:15-cv-07059-JAK (AGRXx)
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im SPF 30
nt (80 mins)

ACTIVE INGREDIENT:

Non-Nano Zinc Oxide 9.3%

INACTIVE INGREDIENTS

yspermum Parkil (Shea) Butter”, Calendula Officinalls Fliower Extract”, Chamomilla Re
uus (Sunflower) Seed Oll, Hydro:
s Armeniaca (Apricot) Kernel O1l, Silica, Simmaon

ita (Matricaria)
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BROAD SPECTRUM
SPF 30
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a Pure = Great for the Entire Family!

—Tﬁ,%gﬁm

\Active ingredient Purpose
T bt 9.3% oo T e e e TSt eer TR e vereTY Surscreen
lises = helps prevent sunbum » if used as directed with other

g protection measures [see Dire :unnsk‘:jecreasus the rigk of
wn cancer and early skin aging caused by the sun

Warnin

b pvtornal nen nnly

Water Resistant (80 Minutes) = Easy to Apply :
\ on-Whitening = Plant & Mineral Based /
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details &
ingredients

ACTIVE INGREDIENT:

Beeswax®, Butyloctyl Salicylate, Butyrospermum Parkil (Shea) Butter®, Calendula Officinalis Flower Extract”, Chamomilla Recutna (Matricaria)
1us (Sunflower) Seed OIl, Hy le Oll, Jojoba Esters, Methyl
aca (Apricot) Kernel Oll, Silica, Simmandsia ¢ ensis (Jojoba) Seed O
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itening * Plant & Mineral Based |
Ultra Pure = Great for the Entire Family! |

' Water E;ﬁ-.““t (80 Minutes) « Easy to Apply {

\Drug Facts ;
Active ingredient Purpose| | |
Uses = helps prevent sunbum = if used as directed with other !
o protection measures [see Direction \i decreases the nsk of '
&r cancer and early skinaging caused by the sun f
Wamings y

Fur svtornal use nnly

14.107. Although_in March 2015 Defendant reduced the content of zinc

oxide—by its own admission, “the ONLY active sunscreen ingredient” in Honest

Sunscreen—by more than half, it continued to represent that Honest Sunscreen
provideswas effective and provided “broad spectrum SPF 30z sun protection.”*

108. Thereafter-Defendantbeganreceiving | e advertising representations that
a product is “effective” and provides “broad-spectrum mineral-based protection”

or “natural mineral based sun protection,” in the context of Honest Sunscreen,

mean the product should protect the user from unhealthy exposure to harmful UV

rays.
109. These representations are material to a reasonable consumer. This is

evidenced by Defendants making these representations in labeling and advertising

in online webpage descriptions on Honest.com, and point-of-sale displays, and in

other advertising materials.

110. Defendant knew or should have known its representations would

mislead consumers about Honest Sunscreen’s sun protection characteristics.

Honest Sunscreen Is Ineffective
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111. Defendant stated and continues to state that Honest Sunscreen is

“effective” for sunblock protection and provides “broad-spectrum mineral-based

protection” and/or “natural mineral based sun protection,”

112. These representations are untrue, misleading, and/or deceptive.

113. Defendant sought to induce consumers including Plaintiff to purchase
Honest Sunscreen by making the above representations regarding its alleged health
and safety benefits. As one consumer stated, “I’m not a chemist. . . . But when |
buy a bottle that says SPF 30 on it and it has zinc oxide, | just thought | was

getting her a bottle that would offer some protection.” (Lisa Parker, “Burn Notice:
Angry Parents, Sunburned Kids and Complaints About a Popular Brand of

Sunscreen,” NBC Chicago, http://www.nbcchicago.com/news/local/Angry-

Parents-Complaints-About-Popular-Sunscreen-Brand-318367591.html (last visited
Jan. 4, 2016)).
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114. Defendant’s claims regarding Honest Sunscreen’s effectiveness are

directly contradicted by Plaintiffs’ experiences and those of hundreds of other

unhappy customers, to wit:

2. Follow

Don't buy @Honest sunscreen unless u
want to look like this. Second time I've tried
this stuff and got fried

I hé Honest Lompany - Sunscreen Lation
SPF 30, 3 Fl 0z

W Horrible product! We went to
Hawail with our kids
By Jaymie Chapman on Jul 30, 2015

Horrible product! We went to Hawall with our kids.
We sat at the pool for a few hours. Everyone used
honest sunscreen and continued 1o reapply the
sunscreen. It was like we used baby oil! We were
all extremely bumed! Especially my litthe 2 year
old! She had blisters on her shoulder! It is so sad!
Waorst product ever!

' was tnis review helpful?

Halpbul (5} Moit halpdul (1)

Images in this review
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@00 Amarsn oen Cuntames Revews The Hamest Company - Sumiirees Laton 99F 30, 1 £l O
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The Honest Company - Sunscreen Lotion
SPF 30, 3F1 Oz

- DO NOT BUY THIS PRODUCT

unless you like to look like a lobater

By A Hughas on Aug 02, 2015

My family of 5 used thés sunacreen yesierday and

o all 5 of us ame very burnt Yiou might as well slather
BN yoursal! in baby of because that is how well it

: works!

Was ths renview hspha?

Hepha (0] Mo heipdd (0]

Images in this review

15.115. Throughout August 2015, Defendant received numerous

customer reviews and complaints alleging Honest Sunscreen did not offer the sun

protection it promised and marketed. According to one news story:
Jessica Alba’s Honest Company has come under fire by unhappy
customers who say the brand’s sunscreen option is sub-par. Several
people took to social media to show off the painful-looking sunburns
they got after using the product, with many mentioning they were only
in the sun for a few minutes. A study done by NBC5 Chicago found
that Honest’s sunscreen contains only 9.3 percent non-nano zinc oxide
while other products contain 18 to 25 percent of the active ingredient.
They wonder if the reduced amount of zinc oxide contributed to the
Issues customers were having. Honest changed its formula, which
originally had 20 percent zinc oxide, earlier this year but claims to have

added other components to make up for the reduced amounts.*
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(See Jihan Forbes, “Jessica Alba Responses to Honest Sunscreen Fails,” The

Fashion Spot, http://www.thefashionspot.com/buzz-news/latest-

news/624761-jessica-alba-honest-sunscreen/ (last visited Jan. 7, 2016)).

116. Defendant’s Amazon marketplace webpage contains documented

customer reviews that detail evidence of sunburn and blisters resulting from

exposure to the sun, after applying Honest Sunscreen.

117. Defendant’s Twitter and Facebook account received numerous

messages published by users who documented sunburn injuries resulting from

exposure to the sun, after applying Honest Sunscreen.

118. Consumer comments on Defendant’s blog also contained numerous

complaints about sunburn and after-effects resulting from exposure to the sun after

applying Honest Sunscreen.

Defendant Knew its Sunscreen Failed to Protect Users as of Auqust 2015

119. Defendant continued to represent that Honest Sunscreen was effective

even after learning that numerous consumers suffered sunburns using Honest

Sunscreen.

16:120. Defendant responded to the media backlash with a statement
that compounded its deceptive representations regarding Honest Sunscreen.
Specifically, Defendant stated, “Our previous Sunscreen formulation had a 40-
minute water resistance and customers told us that it didn’t apply as easily as they
would’ve liked. Based on our own experience and consumer feedback, we
redesigned our Sunscreen Lotion for 80-minute water resistance and an improved

formulation that allows for easier application and a lighter-weight feel.”*
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17121, Defendant further attempted to create false confidence in
Honest Sunscreen by claiming it was tested by a third party to meet FDA
standards, even though according to the FDA it neither verifies such testing nor

requires any company to share the result of any such testing.*

2. Follow

Don't buy @Honest sunscreen unless u
want to look like this. Second time I've tried
this stuff and got fried

318367591.html
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I he Henest Lompany - Sunscreen Lotion
SPF 30,3F Oz

g Horrible product! We went to
Hawail with our kids
By Jaymie Chapman on Jul 30, 2015

Horrible product! 'We went to Hawail with our kids
We sat at the peol for a few hours, Everyone used
honest sunscreen and continued to reapply the
sunscreen. It was like we used baby oil! We were
all extremely burmed! Especially my little 2 year
old! She had blisters on her shoulder! It is so sad!
Worst product ever!
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The Honest Company - Sunscreen Lotion
SPF30,.3FI0z

w DO NOT BUY THIS PRODUCT
unless you like to look like a lobster

By A Hughes on Aug 02, 2015

My farnsly of § used this sunscresn yeslarday and
all 5 of us ane very burmt. You might a3 well slather
yoursall in baby ol bacause that is how well it
works!

VWas TS review hasplul T

Haipha (0] ot heigial (D)

Images in this review

<

18:122. Defendant'sclaimsregarding Honest Sunscreen’s-effectiveness
areDefendant’s false advertising misconduct is further belied by its own

subsequent actions. According to one news story:
After seeing the rash of complaints NBC 5 Investigates visited some local
stores and found the product was no longer on some store shelves, like
Target where an employee told us it was “discontinued.” The shelves were
nearly empty at the Nordstrom we visited, and “out of stock” for visitors to
the company website. Which made us wonder: is the company quietly

pulling a problem product?* (Parker, “Burn Notice,” supra.)
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Plaintiffs” Experience with Defendants’ Advertising and Products

Plaintiffs’ Purchase of the Products
Hand Soap
123. Starting in late 2013 and through the summer of 2015, Plaintiff

Stavroula purchased Honest Hand Soap from Target in the State of Florida.

124. In or about July 2015, Plaintiff Rubin purchased “lemongrass”

Honest Hand Soap from Gelson’s Markets in Los Angeles, California.

Dish Soap
125. Starting in late 2013 and through the summer of 2015, Plaintiff

Stavroula purchased Honest Dish Soap from Target in the State of Florida.

126. In or about July 2015, Plaintiff Rubin purchased “white grapefruit”

Honest Dish Soap from Gelson’s Markets in Los Angeles, California

Sunscreen
127. In late April or early May 2015, Plaintiff Michael purchased Honest

Sunscreen at Costco Wholesale in West Des Moines, lowa.

128. On June 26, 2015 Ms. Hembree purchased Honest Sunscreen from

Costco Wholesale in Burlington, Kansas.
129. On March 29, 2015, Ms. Lung purchased Honest Sunscreen from

Costco Wholesale in Burbank, California.
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Plaintiffs’ Exposure to the False Advertising and the Resulting Harm

130. Plaintiffs Rubin, Michael, Da Silva, Hembree, and Lung all actually

witnessed Defendant’s advertising campaign.

131. Starting in at least February 2015, Rubin became aware of the Honest

Company’s representations that its Hand Soap and Dish Soap, along with its other

products, were “natural” and non-toxic. From approximately February 2015

through at least July 2015, he viewed Defendant’s website several times, he saw

Defendant’s ads on Facebook and saw banner ads on other websites, promoting its

products as “natural”. He also viewed videos of Jessica Alba on television and the

internet promoting Defendant’s image as a company that only sells natural

products
132. When Rubin purchased the Honest Hand Soap in or about July 2015,

he saw Defendant’s representation on the label that the product was “natural.”

133. Rubin bought the Honest Hand Soap and Dish Soap, which were

marked up at a premium as compared to comparable products, based on

Defendant’s representations on its labels, advertising and marketing that the

products were natural.
134. Starting in late 2013 and through 2015, Plaintiff Da Silva read and

generally believed that Honest products were natural, non-toxic, and plant based.

Plaintiff Da Silva saw Defendant’s advertising and labeling representations on

product packaging, in-store displays, internet advertising, magazines, and

advertising and articles in parenting magazines.
135. Plaintiff Da Silva bought the Honest Hand Soap and Dish Soap,

which were marked up at a premium as compared to comparable products, based

on Defendant’s representations on its labels, advertising and marketing that the

products were natural.

CEASSACHON-COMPLEAINT—1 .0
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136. As stated above, Defendant knew or should have known that its

representations regarding the Natural Products would mislead consumers into

believing those products did not contain synthetic ingredients.

137. Plaintiffs Rubin and Da Silva did not know and had no reason to

suspect that Defendant misrepresented the characteristics of Honest Hand Soap

and Dish Soap.

138. As a result of his payment of a premium to Defendant for these

Natural Products, both Rubin and Da Silva experienced economic harm.

19.139. Prior to purchasing Honest Sunscreen, piaintifPlaintiffs

Michael, Hembree, and Lung all saw Defendant’s representations that, among

other things, Honest Sunscreen offered “broad spectrum SPF 30 sun protection.

example, in the months prior to her purchase of the Sunscreen in June 2015,

Plaintiff Hembree observed Defendant’s advertising and marketing of its products,

including the sunscreen, as natural, safe and effective, on television, on

Defendant’s Facebook page, its website, and in floor displays at Costco and other

stores.

141. Starting in late 2013, Plaintiff Lung became aware of Honest

Sunscreen as a consumer products brand. At least as early as 2013, she purchased

pre-2015 formulations of Honest Sunscreen. Lung reasonably believed that the

Honest Sunscreen was effective, based upon Defendant’s brand and company

name, and based upon her experience with earlier versions of the Honest

Sunscreen product.

CEASSACHON-COMPLEAINT—1 .0
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142. Plaintiff Lung purchased Honest Sunscreen from CostCo Wholesale

on March 29, 2015. In addition to purchasing a product she believed was

effective, based upon her experience with previous Honest Sunscreen products,

Lung took special notice that the Honest Sunscreen product she purchased was

labelled as SPF 30, and that it offered broad spectrum protection.

143. Plaintiffs Michael and Hembree experienced sunburns as a result of

using the product. Plaintiff Lung’s children experienced sunburns as a result of

using the product.

144. Michael used Honest Sunscreen as directed in May 2015 and suffered

a severe sunburn resulting in blistering and peeling.

145. Hembree used Honest Sunscreen as directed starting in August 2015

and suffered a severe sunburn as well.

146. Lung applied Honest Sunscreen on her two sons during her family’s

reqular beach outings, in the spring of 2015. Lung applied the sunscreen and

abided by package directions, including instructions specific to outdoor use near

water. Lung’s two children suffered sunburns after using Honest Sunscreen.

Assuming that she had misapplied the sunblock, she tried to use the product again,

during a second outing. Lung’s children again experienced sunburn, after which

she stopped using Honest Sunscreen.

10— Prior to their purchases, Plaintiffs Herest-Sunssreen todecrease—the

CLASS ACTION-COMPLAINT ——1  ,ooc,
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147. Ontheotherhand Plaintifedid not know and had no reason to know
Defendant misrepresented Honest Sunscreen’s sun protection characteristics. Had
_——

20-148. Plaintiffs each paid for an ineffective Honest Sunscreen

product and experienced economic harm. Had Plaintiffs known that Defendant

falsely marketed and sold Honest Sunscreen, kethey would not have purchased

itthe Honest Sunscreen product.

Plaintiffs’ Reliance Was Reasonable

149. Plaintiffs reasonably relied on Defendant’s own statements and

advertising concerning the particular qualities and benefits of their products.

150. Plaintiffs read and relied upon the labels on products in making their

purchasing decisions, along with viewing the statements and advertising on

Defendant’s website and elsewhere on the internet.

151. A reasonable consumer would consider the statements and

advertising regarding the sun protection characteristics of a sunscreen. Here,

Plaintiffs relied on the specific statements and representations by Defendant that

the Honest Sunscreen would provide SPF 30 protection and offered the “best

broad spectrum protection.”

152. A reasonable consumer would consider the ingredients and physical

properties when looking to purchase a natural or organic product. Here, Plaintiffs
CLASS ACTION-COMPLAINT —1 o
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relied on the specific statements and representations by Defendant that the Natural

Products were natural supplemental representations, including that the Natural

Products do not contain harsh chemicals, are safe, are non-toxic, and are plant-

based.

Defendant’s Knowledge and Notice of its Breaches of its
Express and Implied Warranties

153. Defendant had sufficient notice of its breaches of its express and

implied warranties. Defendant had and has exclusive knowledge of the physical

and chemical make-up of its Sunscreen and the Natural Products.

154. For instance, as early as June 28, 2012, a consumer inquired with

Defendant about its inadequate disclosure that its cleaning products contained

cocamidopropyl betaine, phenoxyethanol, and methylisothiazolinone!’:

katie says
Wednesday, June 27th, 2012 1:27 PM at 1:27 pm

Where does it say that the dish soap contains the ingredients: cocamidopropyl betaine,
phenoxyethanol, and methylisothiazolinone. On the bottle it says water and coconut oil derived
surfactants. Are all those things what makes coconut cil derived surcactants?

Update before | even send. | just need to say, | am surprised that the label of a company who's goal
is to be completely transparent, was not so transparent. | went to the website and now the dish soap
has an 'updated scent’ of white grapefruit and spells out those ingredients you mentioned instead of
what's on my bottle, "Water, and coconut oil derived surfactants.”. | am disappointed in the 'honest’
company and will not be purchasing from them again.

Reply

Maia says
Thursday, June 28th, 2012 6:25 PM at 6:25 pm

17 https://gimi  Hixate- a-alba-good-bad-

| got my information from the website and a couple of phone calls to the company; I've not yet held a

:: !r-SI !gg kx /g! i! bottle of the soap in my hand, and I'm disappeinted to hear that the ingredients listed there are
vague and, frankly, sneaky. | agree that there is an inconsistency between the ostensible mission of

the company and not only the inclusion of such chemicals, but also the intentional obscuring of their
F I RST AI\/ inclusion! That said, | have to reiterate what | said in my post: | think Jessica Alba is sincerely ael V- The H OneSt

passionate about making safe products, and the vast majority of the Honest line is clean, safe, l

and...well, honest. It's unfortunate that the dish soap is such a glaring exception.
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155. Defendant was also notified of the defective nature of its Honest

Sunscreen through consumer contacts, complaints, and news related articles.

(David Kroll, “The Failure of Jessica Alba’s Honest Company Sunscreen
Explained,” Forbes, http://www.forbes.com/sites/davidkroll/2015/08/03/the-
failure-of-jessica-albas-honest-company-sunscreen-explained/ (Last accessed on
Aug. 3, 2015).)

156. Indeed, on information and belief, Honest itself chose to run tests on

its sunscreen based on the numerous complaints, articles and bad press on August

2, 2015. (Jessica Fecteau, “Jessica Alba’s Honest Company Responses to

Sunscreen Complaints: ‘We Take All Consumer Feedback Very Seriously.

People.com, available online at http://www.people.com/article/jessica-alba-honest-

company-sunscreen (last accessed Jan. 7, 2016).) Thus, Defendant had knowledge

and notice from proposed class members prior to filing on any complaint.

157. Plaintiff Michael and Rubin also timely sent Defendant a letter

detailing the bases for their claims of breach of implied and express warranties.

These letters were sent months before the filing of this consolidated complaint.
Privity Exists With Plaintiffs and the Proposed Class

158. Defendant knew that consumers such as Plaintiffs and the proposed

Class would be the ultimate user of the products and target of its advertising and

statements.

CLASS ACTION-COMPLAINT ——1  ,ooc,
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159. Defendant intended that its statements and representations would be

considered by the end-users of its products, including Plaintiffs and the proposed

Class.

160. Defendant directly marketed to Plaintiffs through its statements on its

websites and packaging.

161. Plaintiffs are the intended beneficiaries of the express and implied

warranties.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

162. Alpersenswhe-Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves and,

pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of two

nationwide classes (the “Honest Natural Products Class” and the “Honest

Sunscreen Class”) that include other similarly situated purchasers of the Honest

Products who experienced the same or substantially similar harm as a result of

Defendant’s false advertising.
HONEST NATURAL PRODUCTS CLASS: All U.S. residents who have
purchased Honest Sunscreen-Dish Soap, Honest Hand Soap, Honest Diapers,

Honest or Multi-Surface Cleaner (the “Natural Product(s)”) from any retail store

or website thatand who did not register for membership with the Honest Company
during the applicable statute of limitations.—The-Class-exeludes
HONEST SUNSCREEN CLASS: All U.S. residents who have purchased

Honest Sunscreen from any retail store or website and who did not reqgister for

membership with the Honest Company during the applicable statute of limitations.

Both of the Classes exclude any judge or magistrate assigned to this case;;

all persons who make a timely election to be excluded from the Class;

governmental entities; Defendant and any entity in which Defendant has a

CEASSACHON-COMPLEAINT—1 .0
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controlling interest, and its officers, directors, legal representatives, successors and

assigns-{the-“Class™.; and any person who purchased the Honest Products for resale.

163. This-action-ispropery-maintainableAs used herein, the terms “Natural
Products Class Members” and “Sunscreen Class Members” shall mean and refer to

the members of the respective Classes described above.

164. Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend the Class definitions, and to add

subclasses, as warranted by facts discovered.

165. Class-wide treatment is appropriate because Plaintiffs can prove the

elements of their claims on a class-actien-under-wide basis using the same evidence

as would be used to prove those elements in individual actions alleging the same

claims.
13— Numerosity—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23-ef-the Federal- Rules-of

21.166. (a)(1). The classissmembers of the Classes are so numerous that

joinder of-al-members-is impracticable. Upon information and belief, there are

da-at least thousands of

individual purchasers of Honest Natural Products and Honest Sunscreen. The

precise number of Honest Natural Products Class Members or Honest Sunscreen

Class Members is unknown to Plaintiffs, but may be ascertained, including by

objective criteria. Members of the classes may be notified of the pendency of this

action by recognized, Court-approved notice dissemination methods.

22.167. There-are-Commonality and Predominance—Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure 23(a)(2) & 23(b)(3). This action involves common questions of

law andor fact, which arecommon-to-the Class—Fhecommenpredominate over any

questions,whieh

CLASS ACTION-COMPLAINT ——1  ,ooc,
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pursuantto-Fed—R—Civ—P23({e}4); affecting individual members of the Classes.
Common guestions include-butarenotlimited-to:

(@)  Whether Defendant owed a duty of care to the Class;Honest Natural

Products Class and/or the Honest Sunscreen Class.
(b)  Whether Defendant falsely-advertisedrepresented and continues to

represent that certain Honest Natural Products are natural;

(c)  Whether Defendant represented and continues to represent that

Honest Sunscreen as-ameong-otherthings—a“supersafe-and-superis effective;
(d)  Whether Defendant’s representations in advertising and/or labeling

are false, deceptive, and misleading;

(e)  Whether those representations are likely to deceive a reasonable

consumer;

(f)  Whether Defendant had knowledge that those representations were

false, deceptive, and misleading;

(0)  Whether Defendant continues to disseminate those representations

despite knowledge that the representations are false, deceptive, and misleading;

{b)(h) Whether a representation that a product effering-“‘broad-spectrum-SPF30”
sun-protection-Is natural is material to a reasonable consumer of natural products;

(1) Whether a representation that a product is effective is material to a

reasonable consumer of products;
{e}(1)_Whether Defendant knowingly failed to protect the Sunscreen Class

from the risks and consequences of decreasing the amount of zinc oxide in Honest

Sunscreen;

CEASSACHON-COMPLEAINT—1 .0
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{e)(k) Whether California law applies to the claims of the proposed

ClassClasses;

{e)}(I) Whether Defendant breached express and implied warranties;

(m) Whether Defendant violated California Business and Professions
Code § 17200 et seq.;

(n)  Whether Defendant violated California Business and Professions
Code § 17500 et seq.;

(0)  Whether Defendant violated California Civil Code § 1750 et seq.;

H(p) Whether Defendant was unjustly enriched; and

{g)(0) -Whether PlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Classmembers of the Classes are

entitled to actual, statutory, and punitive damages:; and
Plaintiff’s(1) Whether Plaintiffs and members of the Classes are entitled to

declaratory and injunctive relief.

168. Defendant engaged in a common course of conduct giving rise to the

legal rights sought to be enforced by Plaintiffs each individually and on behalf of

the other members of the Classes. ldentical statutory violations and business

practices and harms are involved. Individual questions, if any, are not prevalent in

comparison to the numerous common questions that dominate this action.
169. Typicality—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(3). Plaintiffs’
claims are typical of the claims of the other Class-membersandPlaintiff doesnot

members of each of the Classes because, among other things, all members of the

Classes were comparably injured through the uniform misconduct described above

and were subject to Defendant’s false, deceptive, misleading, and unfair labeling

and marketing practices, including the false claims that the Honest Natural

Products are natural and the Honest Sunscreen is effective. Plaintiffs do not have

any interests adverse to the Classes.
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170. Adequacy of Representation—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure

23(a)(4). Plaintiff are adequate representatives of the members of each of the

Classes because their interests do not conflict with the interests of the other

members of the Class they seek to represent: they have retained competent counsel

with experience in complex class action litigation; and Plaintiffs will prosecute

this action vigorously. The interests of the members of the Classes will be fairly

and adequately protected by Plaintiffs and their counsel.

171. Declaratory and Injunctive Relief—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure

23(b)(2). Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to

Plaintiffs and other members of the Classes, thereby making appropriate final

injunctive relief and declaratory relief, as described below, with respect to the

members of the Classes, each as a respective whole.
172. Superiority—Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(3). A class

action is superior to any other available means for the fair and efficient

adjudication of this controversy, and no unusual difficulties are likely to be

encountered in the management of this class action. The damages or other

financial detriment suffered by Plaintiffs and the other members of the Classes are

relatively small compared to the burden and expense that would be required to

individually litigate their claims against Defendant, so it would be impracticable

for members of the Classes to seek redress for Defendant’s wrongful conduct on

an individual basis. Individualized litigation would also pose the threat of

significant administrative burden to the court system. Individual cases would

create the potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments, and would

increase delay and expense to all parties and the court system. By contrast the

class action device presents far fewer management difficulties and provides the

streamlined benefits of sinqular adjudication and comprehensive supervision by

one court. Given the similar nature of the class members’ claims, the Classes will
LRSS AT T ION COMPLATNT .
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be easily managed by the Court and the parties and will be managed more

efficiently in this integrated class action than through multiple separate actions in

the various states.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violation of California’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act
California Civil Code 88 1750 et seq.

173. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this Complaint.

174. Plaintiffs bring this claim for relief pursuant to the California
Consumers Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA™).
175. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(5),

which prohibits “Representing that goods or services have . . . characteristics,

ingredients, uses, benefits, or quantities which they do not have.”
176. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(7),

which prohibits “Representing that goods or services are of a particular standard,

quality or grade . . . if they are of another.”
177. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(9),
which prohibits “Advertising goods . . . with intent not to sell them as advertised.”
178. Defendant’s conduct violated the CLRA, Civil Code § 1770(a)(16),

which prohibits “Representing that the subject of a transaction has been supplied

in accordance with a previous representation when it has not.”

179. Honest Products are “goods” within the meaning of Civil Code §
1761(a) and § 1770.
180. Defendant is a “person,” as defined by Civil Code 8 1761(c).

181. Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes are “consumers” within the

meaning of Civil Code ﬁ 1761Sd? and 8 1770.
468359
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182. Plaintiffs Rubin and Da Silva and members of the Classes purchased

Honest Hand Soap, Honest Dish Soap, and Honest Sunscreen for personal, family,

and household purposes as meant by Civil Code § 1761(d).

183. Each purchase of the Honest Products by Plaintiffs and each member

of the Classes constitutes a “transaction” within the meaning of Civil Code 88
1761(e) and 1770.
184. In fact, Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the Honest Natural Products

Class Members relied upon the representations in advertising and labels to their

detriment and paid a higher price for Honest Natural Products than they would

have paid for products that are not natural.
185. In fact, Plaintiffs Michael, Hembree, and Lung and the Honest

Sunscreen Class—specifieatty Members relied upon the representations in

advertisements and labels to their detriment and paid for the ineffective Honest

Sunscreen products.

186. Defendant’s conduct is ongoing and, unless restrained, likely to recur.

187. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and members of the Classes, seek

injunctive relief prohibiting Defendant from engaging in the misconduct described

herein.
188. Plaintiffs seek attorneys’ fees and costs as allowed by law.
189. CLRA Civil Code § 1782(d) codifies Plaintiffs’ right to amend

without leave of court to include a request for damages.

190. On September 3, 2015, Plaintiff and-alt-the Classmemberssustained
ed-byv-Rubin
sent a CLRA 8§ 1782 (a) notice letter to Defendant, a copy of which is attached

hereto as Exhibit A. Defendant was served with a copy of the letter on September
14, 2015.
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23:191. On September 24, 2015, Plaintiff are-typicatharmssuffered-by-the
Class-membersand-Michael sent a CLRA § 1782 (a) notice to Defendant, a copy of

which is attached hereto as Exhibit B. Defendant was served with a copy of the

letter shortly after Plaintiff and-otherClassmembers-havean-interestinpreventing
Defendant from-engaginginsuch-conductinthe future-Michael sent the letter.

appropriate:

192. sasesDefendant failed to provide appropriate relief for its violations of
CLRA 88 1770(a)(5), (7), (9) and (16) within 30 days of receipt of Plaintiff
Rubin’s notification. In accordance with Civ. Code § 1782(b), Plaintiffs and the

Classes are entitled, under CLRA § 1780, to recover and obtain the following
relief for Defendant’s violations of CLRA 88 1770(a)(5).(7), (9) and (16):

(@) actual damages under CLRA 8§ 1780(a)(1);

(b) restitution of property under CLRA § 1780(a)(3);

(c) punitive damages under CLRA 8 1780(a)(4) and because

Defendant has engaged in fraud, malice or oppression;
CLASS ACTION-COMPLAINT —1 o
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(d) attorneys’ fees and costs under CLRA 8 1780(d); and
(e) any other relief the Court deems proper under CLRA 1780(a)(5).

193. Plaintiff Rubin previously prepared and filed a declaration stating

facts showing that the Rubin action was filed in a court described as a proper place

for the trial of the action. A copy of that declaration is attached as Exhibit D.

Since Defendant sought to transfer the Rubin action to this District, Defendant has

acknowledged that this District is a proper place for trial of this Action, and a

supplemental CLRA § 1780(d) declaration from Plaintiffs is not required.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
COUNTH

VAOLATION-OF CALIFORNIAS UNFAIR COMPETITION-LAW
¢For Violation of California’s False Advertising Law,

California Business ard& Professions Code 88 1720017500 et seq-).

Califernia-Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in this

First Amended Complaint.
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22— California’s False Advertising Law, Business and& Professions Code
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33.%%‘ i i i i i O

24-195. California-Business-and-Professions-Code-5-88 17500 et seq. (“FAL”™),
provides that “[i]t is unlawful for any . . . corporation . . . with intent . . . to dispose
of . .. personal property . . . to induce the public to enter into any obligation
relating thereto, to make or disseminate or cause to be made or disseminated . . .
from this state before the public in any state, in any newspaper or other
publication, or any advertising device, or by public outcry or proclamation, or in
any other manner or means whatever, including over the Internet, any statement . .
. which is untrue or misleading, and which is known, or which by the exercise of

reasonable care should be known, to be untrue or misleading . ...”
34——Defendant’s misrepresentationsacts and is—falsepractices as described

herein have deceived and-misleading—advertising—regarding—Henest—Sunscreen—misled

including Plaintift and the. Cl bors.
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196. Pefendantknew/Or reasenablyshould-haveknown-itsrepresentations

andare likely to deceive rlaintitf-Plaintiffs and the Honest Natural Products Class

Members and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members.
35— By its actions, Defendant has been and is disseminating uniform

marketing statements concerning the Honest Products, and the public:

25-197. Plaintiff performance, facts connect with, and the-Classmembers

resuttdisposition of befe

regarding Honest SunsereeninvietatienHonest Products, which by their nature are
untrue or misleading, and which Defendant knew or should have known were

untrue and/or misleading, within the meaning of California Business &
Professions Code 5§88 17500 et seq.

198. asDefendant used numerous advertising devices and other manner

and means to disseminate these statements, including those set forth more fully

elsewhere in this Complaint.

199. The statements are likely to deceive and continue to deceive the

consuming public for the reasons detailed above.

200. Defendant intended, and continues to intend, that Plaintiffs and the

members of the Classes rely upon the untrue and/or leading statements set forth

more fully elsewhere in this Complaint.

201. In fact, Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes relied upon

Defendant’s statements to their detriment.

202. The above described untrue and misleading marketing representations

Honest disseminated continue to have a likelihood to deceive Plaintiffs and

members of the Classes.
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203. Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes have experienced an

economic injury as a result of Defendant’s wrengfutuntrue and/or misleading

statements.
204. Plaintiff Rubin and Da Silva and the members of the Honest Natural

Products Class purchased Honest Natural Products and paid a premium for them

based on Defendant’s untrue and/or misleading statements.

205. Plaintiffs Michael, Hembree, and Lung and the members of the

Honest Sunscreen Class purchased ineffective Honest Sunscreen products, which

they would never have purchased but for Defendant’s untrue and/or misleading

statements.

206. Plaintiffs on behalf of all members of the Classes seek equitable relief

requiring Defendants to refund and restore to Plaintiffs and all members of the

Classes the premiums they paid for Honest Natural Products and all monies they

paid for Honest Sunscreen in an amount to be determined by this Court but at least

$5,000,000, and injunctive relief prohibiting Defendants from engaging in the

misconduct described herein.
THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

207. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this First Amended Complaint.

208. Plaintiffs assert this claim on behalf of themselves and the members

of the Classes against Defendant.

209. Defendant’s misconduct violated the Unfair Competition Law,
Business and Professions Code §8 17200 et seq. (“UCL™).

210. Defendant’s misconduct is unlawful under the UCL, as it violates:

(@)  California’s FAL, California Business & Professions Code 88 17500

et seq., as set forth more fully above, supra.
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(b)  California’s CLRA, California Civil Code 88 1750 et seq., as set forth
more fully above, supra.
(c)  Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15

U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting

commerce; and
(d)  Section 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52, which prohibits the

dissemination of any false advertisement in or affecting commerce for the purpose

of inducing, or which is likely to induce, the purchase of food, drugs, devices,

services, or cosmetics.

(e)  Plaintiffs reserve the right to identify additional provisions of law

violated by Defendant as further investigation and discovery are undertaken and

additional facts are discovered.

211. Defendant’s misrepresentations and its false and misleading

advertising constitute “unfair” business acts and practices under the UCL.

212. Defendant’s misconduct offends established public policy and is

unethical, and/or substantially injurious to Plaintiffs and the members of the

Classes.
213. Defendant’s misconduct undermines and violates the policies codified
in the FAL and the CLRA.

214. There is no leqitimate utility of Defendant’s misconduct, let alone any

that would outweigh the harm to Plaintiff and the members of the Classes.

215. Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes could not have reasonably

avoided the injury each of them suffered, as reasonable consumers had no way of

reasonably ascertaining the Honest Products are misbranded and are not properly

labeled or advertised, and were at all relevant times dissuaded from avoiding any

injury by Defendant’s long term advertising campaign.
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216. Defendant’s misrepresentations and its false and misleading

advertising regarding Honest Products constitute “fraudulent” business acts and

practices because members of the consuming public, including Plaintiffs and the

members of the Classes, were and are likely to be deceived thereby.
217. In fact, Plaintiff Rubin and the Honest Natural Products Class

Members relied upon Defendant’s representations on labels and in advertisements

to their detriment and paid a higher price for Honest Natural Products than they

would have paid for products that are not natural.
218. In fact, Plaintiffs Michael, Rubin, Hembree, and Lung, and the

Honest Sunscreen Class Members relied upon Defendant’s representations on

labels and in advertisements to their detriment and paid for ineffective products

they would not have purchased but for Defendant’s untrue and/or misleading

statements.

219. Defendant’s conductRlaintiff IS 0ngoing and theunless restrained,

likely to recur.

26-220. Plaintiffs and each Class areMember has been injured in fact,

and has lost money or property, and each is entitled to restitution and an-erderfor

hedinjunctive relief.

221. Defendant should be required to pay damages and/or make restitution

to Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes and pay for Plaintiffs’ in an amount to

be determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000 in the aggreqate, as well as

Plaintiffs’ and the Class members’ attorneys’ fees.
FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

BREACH OF EXPRESS WARRANTY
Californi ial Codo s |
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222. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this First Amended Complaint.

27:223. As set forth hereinabove, Defendant made representations to
PlaintiffPlaintiffs and the-classmembers of the Classes that, among other things,

Honest Sunscreen provides “broad spectrum SPF 30” sun protection and that it is
“super safe and super effective” and that it provides the “best broad spectrum

protection for your family-2,” and Honest Natural Products are “natural.”

224. The representations set forth herein as to the Natural Products and the

Sunscreen constitute express warranties.

28-225. These promises became part of the basis of the bargain
between the parties and thus constituted express warranties.

226. Plaintiffs and the Class Members reasonably relied on these promises.

29.227. On the basis of these express warranties, Defendant sold and
PlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers purchased

Honest Sunscreen, and Defendant sold and Plaintiffs and the Honest Natural

Products Class Members purchased the Honest Natural Products.

30.228. Honest Sunscreen did not offer the promised sun protection
and therefore Defendant breached its express warranties. As a result of
Defendant’s breach, rieintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class

membersMembers did not receive goods as warranted by Defendant.

229. The Honest Natural Products contained unnatural ingredients and

therefore Defendant breached its express warranties. As a result, Plaintiffs and the

Honest Natural Products Class Members did not receive goods as warranted by
Defendant.

CEASSACHON-COMPLEAINT—1 .0

FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT — Michael v. The Honest
Company, Inc., 2:15-cv-07059-JAK (AGRX)




Case

EREEREBEBREEERNEGTRELESL ©o v o & 0 m w

?:15-cv-07059-JAK-AGR Document 36-3 Filed 01/08/16 Page 68 of 78 Page ID

#:377

31.230. Privity exists because Defendant expressly warranted to
PlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers that Honest

Sunscreen would provide SPF 30 sun protection on its labeling, which labeling

was reviewed and relied upon by rlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class

membersMembers.

231. Privity exists because Defendant expressly warranted to Plaintiffs and

the Honest Natural Products Class Members that the Honest Natural Products did

not contain natural products, including on the labeling of Honest Hand Soap,

which labeling was reviewed and relied upon by Plaintiffs and the Honest Natural

Products Class Members.

32.232. As a proximate result of Defendant’s breachbreaches of
warranty, RlaintiffPlaintiffs and the-classmembers of the Classes have been

damaged in an amount to be determined at trial.
COUNTIV

BREACH OF IMPLIED WARRANTY-OF MERCHANTABHLITY
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Breach Of Implied Warranty Of Merchantability
(California Commercial Code § 2314)

29 Plaintift reall he foreae bhe as s fullv.set forth herain.

233. pPhintiffPlaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations

contained in this First Amended Complaint.

33.234. Plaintiffs brings this claim on behalf of himselfthemselves and

the proposed Honest Sunscreen Class.
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34.235. As set forth hereinabove, Defendant made representations to
PlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers that, among

other things, Honest Sunscreen provides “broad spectrum SPF 30” sun protection
and that it is “super safe and super effective” and that it provides the “best broad
spectrum protection for your family.”

35.236. Defendant was a merchant with respect to goods of this kind

which were sold to Plaintiff and the Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers,

and there was in the sale to rlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class an

implied warranty that those goods were merchantable.
36-237. Defendant breached the implied warranty of merchantability
when it sold riaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class mermbersMembers

Honest Sunscreen that, among other things, did not conform to the promises or
affirmations of fact made on its labels.

3+238. Privity exists as Defendant directly marketed Honest Sunscreen
to RlaintffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class mermbersMembers through its

product labeling.
38-239. As a result of Defendant’s conduct, risintiffPlaintiffs and the

Honest Sunscreen Class mermbersMembers did not receive goods as impliedly

warranted by Defendant to be merchantable.
39.240. As a proximate result of this breach of warranty by Defendant,
PlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers have been

damaged in an amount to be determined at trial.
COUNT-V

EREEREBEBREEERNEGTRELESL ©o v o & 0 m w
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SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Negligent Misrepresentation

241. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this First Amended Complaint.

40:242. Defendant had a duty to disclose to riaintifPlaintiffs and the

Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers Honest Sunscreen’s actual quality and

characteristics.

41.243. Defendant negligently and/or carelessly misrepresented,
omitted and concealed from consumers material facts relating to Honest
Sunscreen’s quality and characteristics including but not limited to its SPF factor
and other sun protection characteristics.

42.244, TheseDefendant’s misrepresentations and omissions were
material and concerned the specific characteristics and quality of Honest
Sunscreen a reasonable consumer would consider in purchasing sunscreen.

43.245. Defendant made such false and misleading statements and
omissions on its website and product labeling, and in its advertisements and
warranties, with the intention of inducing rleintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest
Sunscreen Class membersMembers to purchase Honest Sunscreen.

44.246. As a result of Defendant’s misstatements, it was under a duty
to disclose facts necessary to correct those misstatements. Further, Defendant was
In a better position to discover the misrepresentations than rlaintitfPlaintiffs
because Defendant controlled its own design, manufacturing, testing, and
marketing processes.

45.247. At the time it made the representations, Defendant knew, or by
the exercise of reasonable care should have known, that the statements were false
and that Honest Sunscreen suffered from the defects detailed above.
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46-248. Defendant made such claims about Honest Sunscreen with the
intent to induce RlaintiffPlaintiffs and Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers to

purchase Honest Sunscreen.
47.249. plaintiffPlaintiffs and Honest Sunscreen Class membersMembers

justifiably relied upon Defendant’s misrepresentations about Honest Sunscreen’s

quality and characteristics. rlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class

membersMembers were unaware of the falsity of Defendant’s misrepresentations
and omissions and, as a result, justifiably relied on them in deciding to purchase

Honest Sunscreen. Had plaintiffPlaintiffs and the Honest Sunscreen Class

membersMembers been aware of the true nature and quality of Honest Sunscreen,
they would not have purchased itthe product.

48.250. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s
misrepresentations and omissions of material fact, plaintitPlaintiffs and the Honest

Sunscreen Class membersMembers have suffered and will continue to suffer

damages and losses as alleged herein in an amount to be determined at trial.
COUNT

Fo-thedetrimentof Plaintiff-and-the Class- Members-SEVENTH CLAIM FOR
RELIEF
Quasi-Contract (Money Had And Received)

251. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

this First Amended Complaint.
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44— Defendant has-been-and-centinuesto-be-unjustly enriched-asretained a result

benefit to—the

detriment-and-at the expense of RlaintiffPlaintiffs and the Classmembers:

-252. Defendant-hasbenefitted 0Of the Classes in the form of substantial

revenues and payments from itsunlawful-actsand-it would-be-inequitable for Defendant to

deseribed-hereinPlaintiffs and the members of the Classes for the Honest Products

and from Defendant’s conduct in misrepresenting the Honest Products in labels

and advertisements.

253. Based on the mistake, Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes paid

for the Honest Products.

254. It would be unjust and inequitable for Defendant to retain the benefits

it received and continues to receive from Plaintiff Rubin and the Honest Natural

Products Class Members for the premiums they paid in exchange for products

Defendant falsely represented as “natural,” absent full repayment to Plaintiff

Rubin and the Honest Natural Products Class Members who purchased the Honest

Natural Products.

255. It would be unjust and inequitable for Defendant to retain the benefits

Defendant received and continues to receive from Plaintiffs Rubin, Michael,

Hembree, and Lung, and the Honest Sunscreen Class Members, absent full

repayment to the Plaintiffs and the Sunscreen Class Members who purchased

Honest Sunscreen.

256. Plaintiffs seek restitution on all of the inequitable payments and

profits Defendant retained from Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes in an
amount to be determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, PlaintitfpraysPlaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and the

Classes, pray forjudgment-with-respect-to-his-Complaint.
A. An order certifying the Classes and appointing Plaintiffs as

folows:the representatives of the Classes, and appointing counsel of record for

Plaintiffs as counsel for the Classes:
_ 6 e e O efinod herein:

AwardB. Declaratory and injunctive relief as permitted by law or equity,

including enjoining Defendant from continuing the unlawful practices described

herein, and directing Defendant to identify, with Court supervision, victims of the

misconduct and pay them restitution and disgorgement of all profits and unjust

enrichment Defendant acquired by means of any business practice declared by this

Court to be unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent:

C. An Order for Defendant to engage in a corrective advertising
campaign;
D.  Actual damages, including eempensatory,exemplaryand-statutory

damages-to-Plaintiffand-al-under CLRA 8 1780(a)(1), in an amount to be
determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000;

E. Restitution, disgorgement, and/or constructive trust on all of the

inequitable payments and profits Defendant retained from Plaintiffs and the
members of the ClassClasses, including under CLRA § 1780(a)(2), in an amount

to be determined by this Court but at least $5,000,000;
22— Award-Plaintiffand-the-ClassaetualF.  Punitive damages sustained;

Lot rosgnnbop fo Dinpasnpet and papssnoee o con Clacs ane cncigeeinder
CLRA 81780(a)(4) and because Defendant te-disgerge-s-tH-gotten-gainshas

engaged in fraud, malice or oppression;

L » "3 : i
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' it he.C e d ;

Sopprnd Dl pt s ape fe Lonee coag poncopal oonserpon e G Attorneys’
fees-and+retmbursement-ofall-, per Cal. Civil Code 1780(d) and California Code

of Civil Procedure § 1201.5;

H.  Expenses and costs ferthe-prosecution-of this action;-ane
Sopnrecpel] Pre-judgment and post-judgment interest; and

J. Such other and further relief as thisthe Court deemsmay deem just
and apprepriate-proper, including under CLRA 8§ 1780(a)(5).

BEMANDFORIJURYIRIAL

Dated: January 8, 2015

By /s/ Nicholas A. Carlin

Nicholas A. Carlin

Conor H. Kennedy

Phillips, Erlewine, Given & Carlin LLP

39 Mesa Street, Suite 201-The Presidio

San Francisco, CA 94129

Telephone: 415-398-0900

Email: nac@phillaw.com
chk@phillaw.com
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By:
/s/ Leonard B. Simon

The Law Offics of Leonard B. Simon
655 West Broadway, Suite 1900

San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: 619-338-4549

Emalil: Isimon@rqgrdlaw.com

/s/ Rebecca A. Peterson
Rebecca A. Peterson
Robert K. Sﬁelqms_t

Rebecea-A—Peterson{Calit-Bar#-241858)
Lockridge, Grindal, Nauen P.L.L.P.
100 Washlngton Avenue South,
Suite 2200
Minneapolis, MN 55401
Tel:— (612) Telephone: 312-339-6900
Fax—(612)-339-0981
sesolageln el o
rapeterson@locklavw.com

LAW - OFFICES OF JONEmail:
rapeterson@Ilocklaw.com
rkshelquist@locklaw.com

/s/ Jon W. BorderudBORBERUD
Jon W. Borderud-Esg—{Calif-Bar#-134355)

Law Offices of Jon W. Borderud
2028 Cliff Drive

Santa Barbara, CA 93109
Tel—(Telephone: 310)-621-7004
Email: borderudlaw@cox.net

Attorneys for Plaintiffs _
Shane Michael, Jonathan D. Rubin
Stavroula Da Silva, Dreama Hembree,
and Ethel Lung

CUNEO GH-BERT & LADUCALLP
CharlesJ--aDuca-{3975927)
16-Court-Street-Suite 1012
Brooklyn-New York-11241
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JURY DEMAND
Plaintiffs hereby demand a jury trial on all issues so triable.
Dated: January 8, 2015

By: /s/ Nicholas A. Carlin
Nicholas A. Carlin

ATTESTATION

I, Nicholas A. Carlin, am the ECF user whose identification and password is

being used to file the instant document. | hereby attest that all counsel whose

electronic signatures appear above provided their authority and concurrence to file

this document.

/s/ Nicholas A. Carlin
Nicholas A. Carlin
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